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air without any distribution at all to Eliot and his family who are beneficiaries under any 

beneficiary scenario asserted by any party and they have provided No accountings that show the 

total holdings from the date of the decedents’ deaths to date, in violation of Probate Rules and 

Regulations and fail to show where the vanished holdings have gone in 2.5 years justifying a 

preliminary injunction at this time.   

173. These numbers from the minimal bare discovery obtained to date do not include and are without 

any accounting for the value of Simon’s holdings in the Intellectual Properties of “Iviewit” 

which propels the Estate and Trust to one of the largest in the country when royalties are finally 

monetized. 

174. The value of the VEBA which is already part of this federal litigation involving the Illinois life 

insurance is but one of many unknown assets in this case and it is unknown what happened to 

the VEBA assets once the VEBA was unwound as alleged by Counter-Defendants and Third-

Party Defendants.  

175. Certain documentary evidence shows the VEBA may have been worth $50 Million or more 

with Simon and Shirley as primary plan participants, yet this asset and these funds have also 

allegedly disappeared and vanished according to Counter-Defendants and Third-Party 

Defendants PAMELA, TED, D. SIMON, A. SIMON and other defendants and again with no 

accountings and no records provided to beneficiaries or this Court.61  Where the VEBA Trust 

Trustee LASALLE is according to all parties the named PRIMARY BENEFICIARY of the 

missing insurance policy underlying this action. 

S B Lexington Inc Death Benefit Plan United Bank Of Illinois N A 

Employer Identification Number (EIN) 363479122

                                                 
61 S B Lexington Inc Death Benefit Plan United Bank Of Illinois N A Information 
http://www.nonprofitfacts.com/IL/S-B-Lexington-Inc-Death-Benefit-Plan-United-Bank-Of-
Illinois-N-A.html  
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Name of Organization S B Lexington Inc Death Benefit Plan United Bank Of Illinois N A

Address 120 W State St, Rockford, IL 61101-1125 
Subsection Voluntary Employees' Beneficiary Association (Non-Govt. Emps.)

Foundation All organizations except 501(c)(3) 
Organization Corporation

Exempt Organization Status Unconditional Exemption 
Tax Period 2009

Assets $50,000,000 to greater 
Income $10,000,000 to $49,999,999 

Filing Requirement 990 - Required to file Form 990-N - Income less than $25,000 per year

Asset Amount $0

Amount of Income $0

Form 990 Revenue Amount $0

 

176. On or about September 2012, Eliot discovered that his father Simon Bernstein’s home office 

computers had been virtually wiped clean of data, dispositive documents removed from the 

home by a one Rachel Walker minutes after Simon died causing reasonable and great suspicion 

when considering the sudden and alleged suspicious manner of passing, the allegations of 

Simon’s being poisoned made by his brother TED and others and the millions of dollars in 

holdings Simon Bernstein had after decades of being in business thus beginning a continuing 

and ongoing pattern of missing documents, missing information, missing trusts, missing IRA 

beneficiaries, missing insurance policies and missing evidence which now must be halted and 

enjoined. 

177. Thus, the destruction and loss of vital business records and account records began by the time of 

Simon’s passing in 2012 if not earlier. 

178. On or about Nov. 1, 2013 and Dec. 10, 2013 Eliot pro se filed a motion to Produce against TED 

as the Personal Representative in the Estate of Shirley Bernstein yet no such production has 

been forthcoming by TED to date. 
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179. That Eliot also filed an extensive production request of O’Connell the Personal Representative 

of the Estate of Simon now and O’Connell challenged the routine request and the court has not 

yet made determination, thereby further denying Eliot necessary documentation of the Estate of 

Simon and making it impossible to have Validity or Construction hearings without either 

obtaining the records or having a statement as to where they are. 

180. The Court should note that despite having a court order from COLIN to inventory Simon’s 

home and office business records and produce the inventory to beneficiaries and interested 

parties, despite reassurances from O’Connell that the documents and records would be 

inventoried, no such inventory was produced.  It was later learned that O’CONNELL nor his 

office inventoried Simon’s business address for records as court ordered and by the time this 

was learned it was also learned that TED had been evicted from the office and removed all the 

records from that address before the court ordered inventorying could be done. 

181. The Court should note that COLIN ordered a re-inventorying of assets as it was learned that 

Personal Property from the Shirley Condo sale was missing and where TED claimed it was 

moved to the garages of his father’s primary home and months later when the re-inventorying 

was done it was found that all these items were missing and the garages were empty.  Despite 

learning of this O’CONNELL has taken no action to report the missing Personal Property that is 

in his custody to the proper authorities and further took possession of remaining items and 

moved them to an undisclosed location. 

182. TESCHER and SPALLINA’s production lacks all of the following; 

a. Historical and present Bank and other Financial Institutions statements for the 

multitude of Simon’s Personal and Financial Accounts, 

b. Post Mortem Personal and Corporate Mail, 
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c. Mail from time periods prior to Simon’s passing, 

d. Historical and current Business Records of Simon’s, 

e. Historical and current Insurance records i.e. Homeowners, Jewelry, Auto, 

Business, etc., 

f. Historical and current Corporate Records for any of the many companies Simon 

owned, 

g. Historical Signed Tax Returns, personal and corporate, for any years, 

h. Computer Data and Drives both personal and corporate, and, 

i. Tescher and Spallina despite Court Order to turn over records to Curator retained 

Original Dispositive Documents and all original documents, as what was 

tendered to the Curator had only one original alleged Promissory Note for Eliot’s 

children’s home that was never filed with the courts. 

183. What was left upon inspection by Eliot at O’Connell’s office of Simon’s personal and corporate 

records was 3 bankers boxes of files each only partially filled, for a man who ran multiple 

businesses, had multiple financial institution accounts and more.  On information and belief, 

despite O’Connell having a court order to inspect Simon’s offices with Eliot present, they failed 

to ever inventory Simon’s office prior to TED’s eviction. 

184. That O’Connell was supposed to have inventories all of Simon’s home business records done by 

a professional appraiser and turn that appraisal over to Eliot and while the appraiser did come to 

Simon’s house to reinventory as court ordered, he failed to provide an inventory of the records 

and he failed to inventory all of the Personal Property as required, stating they were out of time. 

185. After O’Connell inventorying, Rose enters the home for alleged lighting issues and alleges to 

have discovered and then removed illegally documents and trust documents included from the 
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home which were under the custody of O’Connell, despite that he had no legal authority to 

remove any properties of the Estate of Simon. 

186. Where the Tescher & Spallina, PA production documents referenced herein are alleged to be 

part of an attempt to cover up crimes and are virtually all alleged to be fraudulent and not at all 

representative of the law firm files of Simon Bernstein or the files that became part of Simon 

and Shirley’s Estates.  There was only 1 original document sent, not even the original 

dispositive documents were tendered to the Successor, no historical banking, tax or other 

business records and there was no mail from the time of Simon’s death included in the 

production. 

187. That Simon had almost a fifty year career in the insurance industry and had multiple active 

companies, including having had multiple trust companies for various of his products he 

invented and Simon was a meticulous record keeper and had massive office space housing 

records prior to his death.  Simon had computer records dating back 20 years and all these 

records and data now appear missing.   

188. Mail from the day he died and prior to his death appears missing, including bank statements, 

insurance records for home, life and property insurances, insurance commission checks, 

insurance policy records, credit card statements and virtually all of his mail is unaccounted for.  

Years of personal finance records of his many Private Banking Accounts and Statements all 

missing from his records for accounts held at Oppenheimer, Stanford, JP Morgan, Sabadell 

Bank, Legacy Bank, Wilmington Trust, Wells Fargo, etc.  Tax Returns missing. Trust 

Documents Missing. Insurance Policies Missing for both he and Shirley. IRA account histories 

missing.  Pension account information missing.  According to O’Connell Simon and Shirley’s 

business and personal finance records were in less than three banker boxes.  No hard drives 
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have been recovered and data from them produced.  All records of his 17 year involvement with 

the Iviewit Technology Companies, including his stock in the companies and copies of 

Intellectual Property Filings and more, which I had seen at his office only a few months prior to 

his death are all missing, including thousands of emails regarding the companies and other 

pertinent information that Simon was safekeeping after it was seized from the companies on or 

about 2000-2001.  Overall the contents of Simon’s home and office records should have 

amounted to over 100 banker boxes filled and gigabytes of data. 

Ted Bernstein, Greenberg Traurig, Stanford Trust, Robert Spallina, Proskauer Rose  

189. TED is the oldest son of Simon and Shirley Bernstein, now deceased.  

190. Simon Bernstein passed away in Sept. of 2012, having predeceased his wife Shirley Bernstein 

who passed away in Dec. 2010.  

191. Ted was the last person in possession of my Mini-van before it was turned over to the body 

company where it was burglarized with wires taken out and a PD report generated and then 

taken to another company where it was Car-bombed.  

192. While Ted Bernstein had been asked to come forward to the FBI about the circumstances of the 

Car-bombing he has never done so to my knowledge.  

193. TED was living in the home of Simon Bernstein pulling his life together prior to the Car-

bombing of Eliot’s family vehicle in 2005.  

194. TED soon thereafter was commingling with PROSKAUER, LEWIN and Greenberg Traurig  

and suddenly gets a Multi-million dollar home on the intra-coastal waters.62 TED has other 

insurance business relationships with Tescher & Spallina, PA, TESCHER and SPALLINA right 

                                                 
62 Zillow Listing TED Home @ http://www.zillow.com/homes/880-Berkeley-St-Boca-Raton-FL-
33487_rb/?fromHomePage=true&shouldFireSellPageImplicitClaimGA=false  
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from the outset of their involvement in Simon and Shirley’s Estate Planning and TED brings 

them to his father claiming they will be a rich source of referrals for him.  

195. Greenberg Traurig (“GT”) who was involved with the Iviewit IP and Iviewit Bar Complaints 

and Federal RICO and ANTITRUST lawsuit of Eliot, also represented TED personally in the 

lawsuit that also involves the Estates and Trusts of Simon and Shirley with Stansbury - GT main 

defendant with PROSKAUER in the STANFORD litigation. 

196. TESCHER under deposition can not remember why he gets checks of $55k twice from one of 

TED companies.63  

197. STANFORD is one fund that Simon Bernstein invested substantial monies in and eventually  

STANFORD broke open as a major Ponzi scheme on or about Feb. 2009 and is claimed as a $7 

Billion plus ponzi scheme, See, SEC public Announcement Feb. 17, 2009: 

“ SEC Charges R. Allen Stanford, Stanford International Bank for Multi-
Billion Dollar Investment Scheme FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 2009-26: 
Washington, D.C., Feb. 17, 2009 — The Securities and Exchange Commission 
today charged Robert Allen Stanford and three of his companies for 
orchestrating a fraudulent, multi-billion dollar investment scheme centering on 
an $8 billion CD program.64”   
 

198. According to the SEC public statement,  

“Rose Romero, Regional Director of the SEC's Fort Worth Regional Office, 
added, "We are alleging a fraud of shocking magnitude that has spread its 
tentacles throughout the world.”  
 

                                                 
63 July 09, 2014 Tescher Deposition by Florida counsel Peter Feaman on behalf of William 
Stansbury 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20140709%20Tescher%20Deposition%20and%20
Exhibits.pdf  
64 February 07, 2009 SEC PRESS REPORT ALLEN STANFORD PONZI 
https://www.sec.gov/news/press/2009/2009-26.htm 
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199. According to public articles, PROSKAUER and GREENBERG TRAURIG are centrally 

involved in the Stanford Ponzi and are being sued for the entire scheme65.   

200. Upon information and belief, William Stansbury has not able to get info on the Retirement 

Plans from TED even as a Co-Trustee and Stansbury’s lawyer Peter Feaman has no response 

from ROSE .  

201. According to Stansbury, approximately $6500 or so per each minor child that should have been 

paid out and not gone through Estate. 

202. Further, upon information and belief,  TED is under Dept of Labor Investigation and has been  

non responsive to beneficiaries and again with no accountings the numbers seem strikingly low.  

Simon Bernstein’s “Missing Iviewit Shares, Proskauer Iviewit Files and Iviewit”, “Missing Estate 

Planning” from Proskauer Rose and Foley Lardner 
 

203. Eliot is the natural son of Simon and Shirley Bernstein, who both resided in Boca Raton, Florida 

within Palm Beach county at relevant times herein.  

204. Shortly after the birth of their first son in California, Joshua, Eliot and Candice Bernstein were 

about to move into a new home with their child. 

205. That Simon and Shirley however had taken ill at the time and traveling to California was 

burdensome at the time and Eliot and Candice proposed moving to Florida and Candice would 

move from her hometown of Newport Beach/Corona Del Mar where her and her family lived 

and where she had met and married Eliot.  Candice willing to give up everything to be with 

Eliot’s parents and have her baby with them and so they moved. 

                                                 
65 July 27, 2015 Proskauer Rose, Greenberg Traurig and Chadbourne sued in STANFORD PONZI 
Judge refuses to dismiss 
http://www.americanlawyer.com/id=1202732467400/Judge-Declines-to-Dismiss-Claims-Against-
Proskauer-and-Chadbourne?slreturn=20151101125935  
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206. Simon and Shirley were elated to have their son, his wife and grandson close to them and they 

gave Eliot and Candice a $100,000.00 wedding gift as a deposit at a Condominium on Mizner 

Boulevard in Boca Raton and where decorating it prior to Eliot and Candice’s arrival. 

207. Where the owner of the building, a one James Cohen was a client of Simon’s and so it was a 

spectacular deal on a brand new trio of buildings in the heart of Boca, which property had 

fantastic growth in a short time. 

208. Life was great in Boca working with Simon for the first time in his life in the same city, every 

week like clockwork Eliot, Candice and the children had brunch on Sunday, dinner at least once 

a week with them and then golf or a movie.  A second son was born, JNAB.  

209. At all relevant times herein, since on or about 1998, Eliot is the actual and true Owner and 

Inventor of Intellectual Properties ( hereinafter referred to as “IP” ) and the technologies 

hereinafter referred to as the “Iviewit” technologies were technologies heralded by leading 

experts as the “Holy Grail” of the Internet, being backbone technologies used around the globe 

for digital imaging, having major and significant “government” uses such as used on the Hubble 

Space telescope, for a mass of defense applications such as, Space and Flight Simulators, 

Drones, Medical Imaging applications and much much more.      

210. Once the technologies were discovered Simon and Eliot formed companies and secured 

Intellectual Properties through LEWIN and PROSKAUER, raised seed capital from H. Wayne 

Huizenga, Crossbow Ventures and many other seed investors, had a Private Placement with 

Wachovia and already had Goldman Sachs referring clients and getting the companies ready for 

an IPO that some claimed would make the companies larger than Microsoft, as the IP would 

become the backbone technologies to virtually all digital imaging and video content creation 

and distribution software and hardware and more. 
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211. The “Iviewit” technologies were tested used and validated by leading engineers and companies 

including but not limited to Gerald Stanley of Real3d Inc., engineers at Lockheed Martin, the 

Intel Corporation, Silicon Graphics, Inc., AOLTW ( America Online-Time Warner), Sony and 

Warner Bros., with the IP having been valued in the Billions to Trillions of dollars over the life 

of the IP.  

212. Hundreds of signed Non-Disclosure Agreements, Licensing and Strategic Alliance Agreements 

were obtained on behalf of the technologies involving Fortune 500 companies, financial 

institutions and others such as Lockheed Martin, the Intel Corporation Inc., Goldman Sachs, 

Wachovia, JPM, Chase, IBM, AT&T, Warner Bros, Sony, Inc., Dell Inc, and many others, all 

currently and since that time using Inventor Bernstein’s Scaling Technologies IP without paying 

royalties to the true and proper inventors and violating their contracts.  

213. The Internet would not have rich video or imaging and cable television would have 75% less 

channel bandwidth available without these technologies. 

214. Simon L. Bernstein was a lifelong successful Life Insurance salesman growing many businesses 

and gaining substantial wealth during his lifetime, earning millions in income yearly such that 

he was a “Private Banking” client of leading US and International Banks, and he and his wife 

had a fully paid multi-million dollar home in Boca Raton, Fl, at the leading country golf club 

Saint Andrews and a fully paid multi-million dollar beachfront Condominium on Ocean Blvd. 

in Boca Raton, Fl. with their own private floor and elevator.   

215. On or about 1997, Simon L. Bernstein an original seed capital investor in Counter Plaintiff’s 

novel technologies and IP, which later became known as the “Iviewit” technologies and Simon 

Bernstein became a 30 percent shareholder of company stock issued for operational and holding 

companies for the Intellectual Properties and 30 percent owner of the Intellectual Properties and 
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he also became the Chairman of the Board, all companies originally formed by PROSKAUER 

and accountant LEWIN.  

216. PROSKAUER and LEWIN were both not only intimately involved in the “Iviewit” Company 

operations and were stockholders on gifts Eliot gave Proskauer and Lewin’s family, but further 

provided Estate and Family Planning advice to Simon who had now become a 30% shareholder 

in the Iviewit IP and Iviewit companies.  

217. PROSKAUER prepared Wills, Trusts and other Estate Planning instruments for Simon and 

Shirley Bernstein while PROSKAUER was simultaneously acting as Counsel, including 

Intellectual Property Counsel for the Iviewit companies.  

218. With the “Iviewit” Technologies having been valued by leading Experts in the billions of 

dollars by Proskauer referred technology companies, since on or about 2001 to the present, Eliot 

and his wife Candice and their minor children have experienced an ongoing pattern and practice 

of extortionate actions, threats, death threats so real as to include but not be limited to the car-

bombing of the family mini-van in Boynton Beach, Florida on or about March 14, 2005.  

  

This image cannot currently be displayed.

This image cannot currently be displayed.
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courts and fraudulent documents sent to private institutional banking and trust companies, 

fraudulent creation of similarly named companies and similarly named IP in efforts to move the 

IP into other people’s names, one patent attorney, Raymond Joao, who misrepresented himself 

with his partner Kenneth Rubenstein as being partners of PROSKAUER when actually at that 

time they were with Meltzer, Lippe, Goldstein, Wolf & Schlissel, P.C. and where Joao put 90+ 

patents in his own name66 and when this was discovered he left his law firm and went to work 

for New York Senator Dean Skelos’ law firm Ruskin, Moscou, Evans & Faltischek and where 

Skelos and his son are currently on trial in NY with charges of corruption by US Attorney Preet 

Bharara), all combined to further the fraud and maintain control of the IP for the perpetrators. 

222. Joao further worked after Iviewit with the now infamous Ponzi schemer Marc Stuart Dreier, 

sentenced to 20 years by the Department of Justice at the law firm Dreier & Barritz LLP.   

223. The Perpetrators of the frauds alleged herein are primarily composed of criminals with law 

degrees acting in concert and Misusing the law while acting as Private and Public Attorneys at 

Law in their various capacities.   

224. That the reason Eliot’s complaints are full of Attorneys at Law and Judges is that the crimes 

alleged in both the Probate Court and those regarding the IP crimes are both sophisticated legal 

crimes that require a legal degree and bar association license to commit and involve misusing 

the Courts and Government Agencies to implement the crimes,  Then to protect the alleged 

criminals from prosecution the victims are then further victimized through denial of due process 

and where legal process appears controlled by the criminals and infiltrate at will through 

conflicts and more, and finally claiming that because of their legal positions they are “immune” 

from their criminal and civil acts because they are acting as Attorneys at Law or Judges.  Where 

                                                 
66 April 22, 2002 Article Iviewit Patent Attorney Raymond Joao, Esq. has 90+ patents in his name 
http://www.iviewit.tv/Joao%20Article%2090%20patents%20clean.pdf  
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in fact it should be the opposite to protect the public and where those who violate their ethics 

should be charged with treble damages instead. 

225. Since on or about 1999 Eliot has consistently and diligently reported criminal actions relating to 

the crimes committed against the Iviewit shareholders, investors, patent interest owners, himself 

and his family relating to their IP rights, crimes committed primarily by lawyers, to a host of 

federal, state and local authorities as well as international bodies.67    

226. This reporting and petitioning government entities of ongoing criminal actions and thefts of the 

IP includes a Feb. 2009 Petition to the Office of President Barack Obama, the White House 

Counsel’s Office, US Attorney General’s Office, White Collar crime units of the FBI as well as 

several petitions to the SEC in 200968.  

227. One could say that greed was the motivating factor behind these IP crimes, “holy grail” and 

“priceless” evaluations from leading engineers worldwide, until one discovers that Christopher 

Wheeler (Proskauer), Brian G. Utley (IBM) and William Dick (Foley & Lardner and former 

IBM far eastern IP counsel) had secreted the fact that prior to joining the Iviewit companies 

they had worked together for a Florida philanthropist Monte Friedkin who had fired them all for 

attempting to steal intellectual properties from his company Diamond Turf Equipment Co, 

which he had to shutter and take a multimillion dollar loss after learning of their attempt to steal 

his IP.  On the biography of Utley that Wheeler sold to the Iviewit board it stated that the 

company had went on to be a leader in Turf Equipment due to Utley’s innovations instead.  

With this truth it became clear that a pattern and practice of IP theft was in play, nothing to do 

                                                 
67  Investigation Master Chart @  
http://iviewit.tv/CompanyDocs/INVESTIGATIONS%20MASTER.htm 
68 February 13, 2009 Letter to Hon. President Barack Hussein Obama re Iviewit @ 
http://iviewit.tv/CompanyDocs/United%20States%20District%20Court%20Southern%20Distric
t%20NY/20090213%20FINAL%20SIGNED%20LETTER%20OBAMA%20TO%20ENJOIN%
20US%20ATTORNEY%20FINGERED%20ORIGINAL%20MAIL%20l.pdf  
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with Iviewit or greed, a well greased group of players who were perfecting their crimes, in fact, 

the alleged Iviewit thefts mirror the Diamond Turf attempt with Wheeler, Utley and Dick all 

involved in similar acts.   

228. The veracity and truthfulness of Counter-Plaintiff’s statements and reporting of these crimes 

and thefts has never been challenged by any Federal authority including but not limited to the 

US Secret Service, the Capitol Police, the US Marshall’s Service, the FBI, the SEC, at least one 

Federal Judge and other related federal offices.   

229. In 1999 it was learned that IP counsel, Joao from PROSKAUER and Meltzer Lippe Goldstein & 

Schlissel, tampered with Iviewit IP applications and was also putting Iviewit IP into his own 

name, while retained as counsel for the companies. 

230. On or about 2000-2001 it was learned that the IP was fraudulently altered and that false 

inventors were inserted into various IP’s, that there were similarly named yet different IP 

applications filed some entirely missing the invention process being patented and that the 

companies formed were duplicated as part of an elaborate shell game to move the IP out of the 

Iviewit shareholders ownership and into others hands. 

231. As IP applications were seized from Brian Utley, who was acting as President / COO to Iviewit 

at the time, on referral from his friend Christopher Clarke Wheeler, Esq. at PROSKAUER and 

William Dick, Esq. his business associate and patent counsel for IBM who was new IP counsel 

hired by Iviewit to replace Joao who was caught putting IP in his name.  Dick worked at 

FOLEY as of counsel.   

232. It was then learned that the IP was in the wrong names, the assignees/owners were all wrong 

according to Harry I. Moatz, the Director of Enrollment and Discipline at the US Patent Office, 

which led to Moatz directing Eliot to file with the Commissioner of Patents allegations that 
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FRAUD UPON THE US PATENT OFFICE had occurred and seeking suspension of the IP 

while Moatz and an FBI Agent from West Palm Beach, FL were investigating the matters.  

Suspensions were granted. 

233. Warner Bros. finds different  IP then Utley showed them and stated that their patent expert, 

Wayne Smith, Esq. had gone to the US Patent Office and what was on file did not capture the 

invention, nor is what Utley showed them when presenting them a Wachovia Private Placement 

and seeking investment funds. 

234. Shortly after Eliot and his friend, co-inventor and investor and executive at the Iviewit 

companies, James Armstrong, seized the IP applications and information from Utley and Eliot 

went back to California where he was opening a new HQ office in the Warner Bros. Advanced 

Tech Building in Glendale and taking over their video operations.  Eliot began preparing and 

filing federal and state complaints.  Utley then came unannounced to California and levied 

death threats to Eliot claiming that he and his friends Wheeler of PROSKAUER, Dick of 

FOLEY et al. were very powerful and their law firms were too and that if Eliot disclosed the 

findings to the board or others he would have to watch his back and the backs of his wife and 

kids back in Boca.  Eliot contacted the Rancho Palos Verdes Police and Long Beach, CA FBI 

office and reported the incident. 

235. After a board meeting with certain board members including Simon, LEWIN, Donald Kane of 

Goldman Sachs, H. Hickman Powell of Crossbow Ventures/Alpine regarding the threats by 

Utley it was determined that Eliot should stay in LA and his wife and kids would leave Florida 

overnight until things could be sorted out in FL with Utley, PROSKAUER, FOLEY, Wheeler, 

Dick et al. and deal with the threats on Eliot’s family lives that were made by Utley and 

reported to the proper authorities.   
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236. The result the Board members determined was to close the Boca Raton, Fl office and fire all the 

bad players involved, move Eliot’s family overnight to California, in what was just being 

learned to be an attempt to steal the IP by Iviewit’s attorneys at law hired to protect the IP. 

237. Upon information and belief, LABARGA, is presently the Chief Judge of the Florida State 

Supreme Court.  

238. On or about 2002-2003, LABARGA was a District Judge in Palm Beach County assigned to a 

“billing” lawsuit (undisclosed to the Iviewit shareholders, board members, executives and 

potential investors) brought by PROSKAUER after the PROSKAUER firm had done work for 

Eliot, Simon and the “Iviewit” companies and PROSKAUER gaining Confidential information 

about the “Iviewit” technologies and confidential information about their own clients and 

companies.  This lawsuit was also not known to Wachovia who was doing a PPM at the time. 

239. Upon information and belief, the source being actual and true Court pleadings filed with 

LABARGA by a Florida licensed and practicing attorney named Steven Selz, Esq. on or about 

2003 factual pleadings were made in a Counter-Complaint filed by said attorney Selz against 

the PROSKAUER and FOLEY before LABARGA in the “billing” case seeking damages 

against PROSKAUER and claiming the value of the “Iviewit” technologies as $10 Billion or 

greater as of that time in 2003 based upon review and statements of one Gerald Stanley, 

Engineer at Real 3d Inc.69 and others. 

240. These leading Engineers deemed the Iviewit Technologies and IP as “priceless”.  

241. Florida Licensed attorney Steven Selz pled in said Counter-Complaint against PROSKAUER in 

LABARGA’s court as follows:  

                                                 
69  Janurary 28, 2003 Steven Selz, Esq. Counter Complaint in Labarga Court - See Par. 29 
http://www.iviewit.tv/CompanyDocs/2003%2001%2028%20Counter%20Complaint%20Filed.p
df  
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“As a direct and proximate result of the actions of the Counter Defendant, 
Counter Plaintiffs have been damaged in a sum estimated to be greater than 
$10,000,000,000.00, based on projections by Gerald Stanley, CEO of Real 3-D 
(a consortium of Lockheed, Silicone Graphics and Intel) as to the value of the 
technologies and their applications to current and future uses together with the 
loss of funding from Crossbow Ventures as a result of such conduct.”  See Par. 
29,  Jan. 28, 2003 
http://www.iviewit.tv/CompanyDocs/2003%2001%2028%20Counter%20Compl
aint%20Filed.pdf 
 

242. According to wikipedia,  

“Real3D, Inc. was a maker of arcade graphics boards, a spin-off from Lockheed 
Martin. . . . The majority of Real3D was formed by research and engineering 
divisions originally part of GE Aerospace. Their experience traces its way back 
to the Project Apollo Visual Docking Simulator, the first full-color 3D computer 
generated image system.[1]” 70 

 
243. Prior to the PROSKAUER “Billing” lawsuit before LABARGA, back in June 30, 1999, Gerald 

W. Stanley as Chairman, President and CEO of Real 3d, Inc., wrote to Simon Bernstein as CEO 

of Iviewit, Inc., opining favorably on the Iviewit technologies, yet documents start emerging by 

PROSKAUER partners and Brian Utley where the “Iviewit” company name is changed as 

licensing and partnership deals are being signed and finalized and where Timothy P. Donnelly, 

Director of Engineering of Real 3d Inc, even writes to PROSKAUER partner Chris Wheeler 

about providing Eliot an “original signature” on the agreement with Real3d.71 

244. Just prior to this in on or about April 26, 1999 PROSKAUER Partner Christopher Wheeler 

wrote to counsel Richard Rosman, Esq. at Lewinter & Rosman law firm who was acting on 

behalf of Hassan Miah who was brought in by Sky Dylan Dayton, the CEO of Earthlink to 

evaluate the technologies as he was the leading expert in the field of digital video and imaging 

at the time who founded the Creative Artist Agency ( CAA ) / Intel Media lab, the first major 

                                                 
70 Wikipedia Real 3D, Inc. https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Real3D 
71 June 30, 1999 Real 3D Letter @  
http://www.iviewit.tv/CompanyDocs/Real%203D%20Opinion%20and%20Licensing%20Info.p
df 
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collaboration between Hollywood and Silicon Valley in the early days of the Internet whereby 

PROSKAUER Partner Wheeler not only indicates PROSKAUER is coordinating the corporate 

and intellectual property matters for Iviewit but also describes the Iviewit process as “novel” 

and “far superior to anything presently available with what they are familiar”72. Proskauer 

would later try and claim they did no IP work despite their IP partners billing for services 

rendered and more. 

245. Hassan Miah was also CEO of Xing Technology Corporation and from and between 2002-2006 

was managing Director of Media and Entertainment for the Intel Corporation.73 

246. Hassan Miah was one of the first Experts to declare the Iviewit technologies as “The Holy Grail 

of the Internet.” 

247. On or about May 30, 1999, expert Hassan Miah was emailing Eliot saying the Iviewit project 

“is very exciting to me,” providing his home phone number to Eliot, being impressed with Ken 

Rubenstein of PROSKAUER (who was the sole patent evaluator for the MPEGLA LLC 

company and MPEG patent pooling scheme now controlled by PROSKAUER through 

Rubenstein) and indicating Hassan’s own company Xing was a licensee under the MPEG patent 

pool at the time74.  

                                                 
72April 22, 1999 Wheeler Letter to Richard Rosman, Esq. re Hassan Miah, 
http://www.iviewit.tv/CompanyDocs/1999%2004%2026%20Wheeler%20Letter%20to%20Ros
man%20re%20Rubenstein%20opinion.pdf  
73 Hassan Miah Linkedin https://www.linkedin.com/in/hassanmiah  
74 June 01, 1999 Hassan Miah Letter Forwarded to Iviewit Patent Counsel Kenneth Rubenstein of 
Proskauer Rose 
http://www.iviewit.tv/CompanyDocs/1999%2006%2001%20HASSAN%20LETTER%20FOR
WARDED%20TO%20RUBENSTEIN.pdf  
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248. The Intel Corporation acquired Real 3d Inc. (Lockheed, SGI & Intel interests), in 1999 which 

was under NDA, licensing and other agreements with the Iviewit companies regarding the 

Iviewit technologies.75 

249. As referenced in the March 25, 2009 SEC complaint regarding Intel76 and a massive accounting 

fraud which has now been specifically reported to the Philadelphia Office of the SEC that 

recently prosecuted SPALLINA and TESCHER in a separate case from this action but where 

SPALLINA and TESCHER are immersed in fraud and mis-accountings in this action:  

“Not only did Intel later acquire in whole the R3D company which was 
intimately involved in the early phases of this matter and under signed 
agreements with my company, but specific members of Intel/ R3D staff were 
present during key meetings in the early phases and otherwise involved in these 
matters including but not limited to, Lawrence Palley (Director of Business 
Development @ Intel), Gerald W. Stanley (Chairman of the Board, President & 
Chief Executive Officer @ R3D a consortium of Intel, Lockheed and SGI), 
David Bolton (Corporate Counsel @ R3D & Lockheed Martin), Steven A. 
Behrens (Vice President and Chief Financial Officer @ R3D), Rosalie Bibona 
(Program Manager @ R3D), Timothy P. Connolly (Director, Engineering @ 
R3D), Richard Gentner (Director of Scalable Graphics Systems @ R3D), Connie 
Martin (Director, Software Development @ R3D), Diane H. Sabol (Director and 
Corporate Controller Finance & Administration @ R3D), Rob Kyanko (Intel), 
Michael Silver (@ ?), Ryan Huisman (@ R3D), Matt Johannsen (@ R3D), 
Hassan Miah (@ Intel), Dennis Goo (Manager, Digital Home Content for the 
Americas @ Intel), Rajeev Kapur (Chief of Staff, Enterprise Product Group @ 
Intel) and Kostas Katsohirakis (Business Development Manager @ Intel). 
 

250. On or about June 1, 1999, Donald G. Kane (Managing Director) who worked at Goldman Sachs 

with LISA’s husband, Jeffrey Friedstein and his father Sheldon Friedstein (Managing Director 

                                                 
75 Wikipedia Real 3D, Inc. 
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Real3D  
76 March 25, 2009 Iviewit Intel SEC Complaint @ 
http://iviewit.tv/CompanyDocs/United%20States%20District%20Court%20Southern%20District%20NY/2
0090325%20FINAL%20Intel%20SEC%20Complaint%20SIGNED2073.pdf  

Case: 1:13-cv-03643 Document #: 214 Filed: 02/24/16 Page 90 of 132 PageID #:3724

BATES NO. EIB 000817 
02/27/2017



Page 90 of 132 

at Goldman Sachs), was emailing to Eliot about setting up a Royalty Agreement for Eliot and 

his family giving a “priority return ahead of other shareholders.”77 ( emphasis added ).  

251. By the summer of 2000, Christopher Clarke Wheeler, Esq. a Partner at PROSKAUER, authors a 

Marketing letter showing the broad value of the Iviewit technologies and the ability to profit 

from same as 2.5% Shareholders together with a Representative Client List of Proskauer that 

can benefit from the Iviewit technologies including but not limited to AT&T, ABC, Inc., NBC, 

CBS,  the NBA, NHL, Citibank, Columbia Pictures, Inc., Bear Stearns, HBO, Time Warner, 

The Chase Manhattan Bank, JPM, MGM, Oppenheimer and many others.  

252. PROSKAUER Partner Wheeler goes on to say as follows in his letter:  

Dear Colleagues,  
 
As a firm, we are in a unique position to impact the effectiveness of the Internet 
and to profit from the same. The firm of iviewit.com, Inc. is one of my clients 
and Proskauer, Rose, LLP. is a 2.5% shareholder. I have worked closely with 
iviewit, for the past 18 months, establishing and fine-tuning their corporate 
structure. My objective with this letter is to introduce you to this forward-
thinking company and to ask for your support and assistance. The Internet is 
quickly evolving from a text-based medium that users have been forced to read, 
into a multimedia platform that users can begin to experience. The importance 
that this evolution has to e-commerce has been likened to the impact felt by 
television when it was embraced as a marketing and communications tool. 
iviewit’s intellectual property positions them as a leader in the streaming video, 
streaming audio and virtual imaging online markets. Their technologies have 
broad ranging applications for many different industries including: 
entertainment, auctions, education, healthcare and retail. Because of the 
extensive applicability of iviewit’s products, the vast majority of Proskauer’s 
client relationships represent potential clients for iviewit. Please join me as I 
endeavor to introduce my clients to iviewit and, in the process, help those clients 
to gain a competitive advantage through the utilization of iviewit’s technologies. 
Please contact me with any opportunities that you identify and I will arrange an 
introduction to a member of iviewit’s management team. I have enclosed a 
descriptive flyer from iviewit and a multimedia CD-ROM that will serve as an 
introduction to iviewit. Additional information can be found at their website, 

                                                 
77 June 01, 1999 Hassan Miah Letter Forwarded to Iviewit Patent Counsel Kenneth Rubenstein of 
Proskauer Rose 
http://www.iviewit.tv/CompanyDocs/1999%2006%2001%20HASSAN%20LETTER%20FOR
WARDED%20TO%20RUBENSTEIN.pdf  
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www.iviewit.com. Thank you for your time and attention. I look forward to 
working together to help this valued client and to further enhance the value of 
our equity position in iviewit.  
 
Sincerely,  
Christopher C. Wheeler”78 

 
253. According to this PROSKAUER Partner Chris Wheeler letter of 2000, PROSKAUER was 

already representing OPPENHEIMER and JPM as of 2000 while representing Eliot, Simon 

Bernstein and the Iviewit companies with OPPENHEIMER and JPM being NDA signers and 

then later being just two of the places where Simon and Shirley Bernstein’s wealth was placed.  

254. Upon information and belief, history shows that attempted murder such as the car bombing of 

Eliot’s family minivan in Boynton Beach, Florida and possible murder such as the possible 

murder of his father Simon Bernstein, as alleged by Theodore Bernstein on the day of Simon’s 

death, have been carried out for far less than a 30% Interest in the IP and Technologies valued at 

least at $10 Billion or more by leading experts back in 2003.  

255. As indicated, Eliot’s father, Simon Bernstein was a 30% shareholder in the Iviewit Intellectual 

Properties and companies formed, with PROSKAUER centrally involved in the drafting and 

planning of said companies, drafting and filing of intellectual properties, distributing stock to 

various shareholders and drafting and executing dispositive estate and trust documents 

regarding Simon and Shirley Bernstein’s Estate planning.   

256. Estate planning with PROSKAUER was done by both Simon and Eliot in direct preparation of 

an Initial Public Offering to be done by Goldman Sachs through an advisor to the company and 

shareholder, Donald Kane who was a Managing Director at Goldman Sachs & Co.  The IPO 

was to follow a Wachovia Private Placement and the estate and trust work done by 

                                                 
78 July 22, 2000 - Christopher Wheeler Letter to All Proskauer Partners Re Iviewit Techs @ 
http://www.iviewit.tv/CompanyDocs/Armstrong%20Wheeler%20Client%20letter%20with%20
highlights.pdf  
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PROSKAUER was to transfer interests in the Iviewit companies prior to their growth in Eliot 

and Simon’s estates, to their children’s estates to avoid having to transfer them later and suffer 

the estate taxes on the growth of the stock.   

257. These estate plans were executed and then later revoked by both Simon and Eliot, once it was 

alleged that PROSKAUER was involved in frauds against the companies and shareholders and 

PROSKAUER was TERMINATED as counsel.  

258. Yet, somehow, just like this original Insurance litigation in Illinois where litigation is filed by 

Trustees that change overnight from SPALLINA to TED and the Trust remains to this day 

missing with NO executed copies put forth and drafts found months after the lawsuit was 

instigated that appear without any identification of who the draftee is and have no legal force 

and even the Insurance contracts and policies underlying the claims in this Breach of Contract 

lawsuit are missing (not even the insurers have put forth a bona fide copy) and critical business 

documents are missing that any Insurer and Estate planner would have to legally maintain and 

likewise records from PROSKAUER, FOLEY and other involved Estate planners involving 

Simon and Shirley Bernstein are allegedly all “missing” as well and where finally evidence of 

Fraud has been now proven and further alleged regarding the dispositive documents and other 

crimes have been reported ranging from Extortion to TED’s claim on the day his father died that 

he was poisoned.  

259. Back in 2003, LABARGA, however, never afforded Eliot and the Iviewit companies the due 

process opportunity to be heard on their Counter-Complaint, and instead denied the Counter-

Complaint altogether. In a bizarre twist at a scheduled Trial Eliot and counsel showed up to an 

empty courtroom of Labarga and at the trial rescheduling Labarga dismissed two law firms 

representing the Iviewit companies simultaneously on Petitions for Withdrawal whereby both 
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law firms, Steven Selz PA and Schiffrin and Barroway both claimed the other would be 

representing the Iviewit companies at trial and then both walked out, one after the other and left 

the Iviewit companies without counsel.  Approximately 45 days later Labarga ruled a default for 

the company's failure to retain replacement counsel. 

260. Yet upon information and belief, LABARGA also never sanctioned nor reported attorney Selz 

for misconduct or frivolity in making this factual allegation regarding the value of the Iviewit 

technologies.  

261. One of the wrongful “tactics” employed by various Counter-Defendants and Third-Party 

Defendants in the recent years against Eliot in and out of the Courtroom has been to question 

his sanity and ability care for his own children by attacking his claims regarding the car 

bombing of his family minivan and claims about the value of Iviewit IP,  yet even Florida 

Licensed attorney Steven Selz who was representing Plaintiff at the time before LABARGA in 

2003 himself filed a factual pleading stating, 

 “That PROSKAUER  billed IVIEWIT for legal services related to corporate, 
patent, trademark and other work in a sum of approximately $800,000.00” and 
further “ That based on the over-billing by PROSKAUER, IVIEWIT paid a sum 
in of approximately $500,000.00 plus together with a 2.5% interest in IVIEWIT, 
which sums and interest in IVIEWIT was received and accepted by 
PROSKAUER.” 

 
262. See, Paragraphs 24 and 27 of 2003 filed and proposed Counter-Complaint filed by attorney Selz 

in the LABARGA/PROSKAUER billing lawsuit, again this Counter-Complaint never being 

heard by LABARGA.79 

263. Then immediately following Selz, LABARGA then heard a Withdrawal as Counsel motion 

filed by Schiffrin & Barroway that claimed that another law firm, Selz would be representing 

the Iviewit companies and LABARGA approved this withdrawal knowing he had moments 

                                                 
79 January 28, 2003 Steven Selz, Esq. Counter Complaint Labarga Case @ 
http://www.iviewit.tv/Counter%20Complaint%20in%20Order.pdf   
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earlier let Selz out as counsel and then calling Eliot to the stand to advise him that the Iviewit 

companies no longer had counsel and Eliot, a non party to the action would have to obtain new 

counsel in  a short period of time or else default, thus denying counsel to Eliot and the proper 

Iviewit interests under fraudulent circumstances by the machinery of the Courts as continues to 

today. 

264. Eliot was unable to reach either Selz or Schiffrin & Barroway to obtain court files and records 

during the period he had to obtain new counsel and finally after showing up to Selz’s offices 

unannounced was able to recover some of the files and where Eliot attempted to get more time 

from LABARGA who refused. 

265. When Eliot could not get counsel in time, LABARGA ruled against the Iviewit companies and 

issued a default. 

266. Later it would be learned that many of the companies sued by Proskauer in their billing lawsuit, 

who did not have retainers with the Iviewit companies, where duplicated companies involved in 

an attempt to move IP out of the companies and inventors hands and into the hands of improper 

fraudulent inventors.  

267. Thus, while various Counter-Defendants and Third-Party Defendants may simply wrongfully 

claim “Iviewit” was a failed dot.com, it only raises substantial questions as to why 

PROSKAUER would “Bill” close to $1 million, take a 2.5 percent interest in royalties and stock 

in the Iviewit companies, file numerous Intellectual Properties (Patents, Trademarks, 

Copyrights and Tradesecrets, worldwide), recruit their clients to sign agreements with Iviewit, 

issue Stock to Shareholders of numerous companies and do exhaustive Estate planning for 

Simon, Shirley and Eliot Bernstein including protecting Simon’s 30% interest and Eliot’s 70% 

interest in the IP at that time.   
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268. As part of the same practice and pattern which continues in the Estate proceedings of Shirley 

and Simon Bernstein and the Insurance litigation in this Illinois federal district court, 

PROSKAUER schemed in 2001 to tortiously interfere with business relationships and financial 

relationships that would benefit Eliot and advance the technologies by interfering with a 

financing deal going on with Warner Bros. / AOL at the time which would have brought $10-

$20 Million in capital to the Iviewit companies which had already began a licensing and 

operational agreement with them.  

269. Florida licensed attorney Selz filed a specific counter-complaint against PROSKAUER in the 

“billing lawsuit” being heard by LABARGA who denied hearing the Countercomplaint which 

alleged as follows:  

“COUNT IV- TORTIOUS INTERFERENCE WITH AN ADVANTAGEOUS 
BUSINESS  RELATIONSHIP 
 
This is an action for tortious interference with an advantageous business 
relationship within the jurisdiction of this Court. 
 
Counter Plaintiff re-alleges and hereby incorporates that allegations  of 
Paragraphs I through 30 as if fully set forth herein. 
 
Counter Plaintiff was engaged in negotiations of technology agreements with 
both Warner Bros. and AOLTime-Warner as to the possible use of the 
Technologies of the Counter Plaintiffs and investment in Counter Plaintiffs as a 
strategic partner. 
 
That despite the prior representations of RUBENSTEIN, at a meeting held on or 
about November l , 2000, by and between UTLEY, RUBENSTEIN and 
representatives of Warner Bros. as to the Technology of IVIEWIT and the 
efficacy, novelty and unique methodology of the Technology, RUBENSTEIN 
refused to subsequently make the same statements to representatives of AOL and 
Warner Bros., taking the position that since Warner Bros./AOL is "now a big 
client of Proskauer, I can't comment on the technologies of lviewit." or words to 
that effect in response to inquiry from Warner Brother/AOL's counsel as to the 
status and condition of the pending patents on the intellectual property. 
 
That RUBENSTEIN, having served as an advisor to the Board of Directors for 
IVIEWIT, was aware of the fact that at the time of the making of the statements 
set forth in Paragraph 50, above, IVIEWIT was in the midst of negotiations with 
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AOL/Warner Bros. as to the possible funding of the operations of IVIEWIT in 
and sum of between $10,000,000.00 and $20,000,000.00. 
 
Further, RUBENSTEIN as a partner of PROSKAUER, and despite his clear 
prior actions in representing the interests of IVIEWIT, refused to answer 
questions as to the enforcement of the Technology of IVIEWIT, with the intent 
and knowledge that such refusal would lead to the cessation of the business 
relationship by and between IVIEWIT and Warner Bros./AOL and other clients 
familiar with the Warner Bros./AOL technology group then in negotiations with 
IVIEWIT, including, but not limited to Sony Corporation, Paramount, MGM and 
Fox. 
 
That the actions of RUBENSTEIN were and constituted an intentional and 
unjustified interference with the relationship by and between IVIEWIT and 
Warner Bros./AOL designed to harm such relationship and further motivated by 
the attempts to "cover-up" the conflict of interest in PROSKAUER's 
representation of both IVIEWIT and Warner Bros./AOL. 
That indeed, as a direct and proximate result of the conduct of RUBENSTEIN, 
Warner Bros./AOL ceased business relations with IVIEWIT to the damage and 
detriment of Counter Plaintiffs.80” 
 

270. Yet somehow PROSKAUER and FOLEY being powerful international law firms have virtually 

no records of the Estate Planning work done or IP work done for Simon Bernstein nor did 

TESCHER and SPALLINA allegedly obtain this prior work from PROSKAUER or FOLEY or 

Attorney at Law Steven Greenwald, Esq. of Florida before embarking on similar Estate 

Planning work for Simon and Shirley Bernstein.  Especially where Simon believed the IP to the 

largest assets of his estate requiring special Estate planning from the outset for the IP. 

271. Yet, TESCHER and SPALLINA had a public relationship with PROSKAUER in the Boca 

Raton, Florida community being hosted at Bar events and similar events.81  TESCHER and 

SPALLINA directly know and are close friends with PROSKAUER Partner GORTZ of the 

                                                 
80 January 28, 2003 Steven Selz, Esq. Counter Complaint Labarga Case @ 
http://www.iviewit.tv/Counter%20Complaint%20in%20Order.pdf  
81 March 27, 2012 Jewish Federation Mitzvah Society - Proskauer, Tescher & Spallina @ 
http://jewishboca.org/departments/foundation/pac/caring_estate_planning_professionals_to_honor_dona
ld_r_tescher_esq_at_mitzvah_society_reception_on_march_27/  
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PROSKAUER Boca Raton Office in Florida who was the first lawyer that accountant Third 

Party Defendant LEWIN introduced Simon and Eliot too to seek IP protection.  

272. GORTZ of PROSKAUER was directly involved in the Iviewit matters and Bernstein Estate 

matters dating back to 1998, and in fact he was the first person that LEWIN took the 

technologies to for IP protection for the benefit of  Eliot and Simon Bernstein.  

273. In the original underlying Illinois life insurance litigation herein, SPALLINA was in 

communication with GORTZ of PROSKAUER.  See email dated February 18, 2013 from 

SPALLINA to Eliot’s children’s counsel Christine Yates from SPALLINA TESCHER 

PRODUCTION Bates No. TS004461-TS004463.  

274. This pattern of established law firms involved in the technologies failing basic record keeping 

for client files like PROSKAUER and FOLEY allegedly not having important Estate and 

related records like the missing Trusts and Insurance policies in the underlying original action is 

further support for a preliminary injunction at this time.  

275. Eliot, members of the board, investors, prospective investors and management of Iviewit first 

learned of this “billing” lawsuit by PROSKAUER in Palm Beach County while in the middle of 

Financing negotiations for the Iviewit companies with Warner Bros. ( AOL-Time Warner) for 

approximately a $10 to $20 Million Capital infusion for the Iviewit companies while other 

financing activities were underway with a Private Placement Memorandum through Wachovia 

bank.   

276. Eliot had already opened a new Iviewit HQ inside the Warner Advanced Technology building 

on Brand in Glendale, Ca. and had taken over encoding of all Internet content creation of their 

digital video library and had revenue and royalty contracts signed. 
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277. Eliot also learned at the same time that an “Involuntary Bankruptcy” had been filed in Florida 

against companies similarly named to “Iviewit” companies being filed by Brian G. Utley, 

Real3D, Inc./Intel/RYJO, Michael Reale and Raymond Hersh the CFO82.  

278. Eliot also learned on or about the same time from a Arthur Andersen audit conducted on behalf 

of Crossbow Ventures, the largest investor at that time in the IP, that two similarly named 

companies, Iviewit Holdings existed with only one set of books available. 

279. Raymond Hersh claimed that LEWIN’s daughter, Erika Lewin, the in-house accountant at 

Iviewit was accused of misleading the Andersen auditors in her representation of the corporate 

structures put together by LEWIN and PROSKAUER.  Andersen was suddenly removed from 

the audit and replaced by Ernst & Young on a referral from LEWIN to complete the audit for 

Crossbow.  

280. ELIOT also learned on or about the same time that the Iviewit companies President and Chief 

Operating Officer, a one Brian G. Utley, had in his possession a second set of almost identical 

Intellectual Property applications and one set had different inventors, including Utley as sole 

inventor on critical imaging IP such as “Zoom and Pan on a Digital Camera” which was 

invented by Eliot and others almost a year before even hiring Utley, where Utley lists himself as 

the sole (soulless) inventor. 

281. Eliot also learned on or about the same time more information that Joao who represented 

himself as a Proskauer Partner when in fact he was not, had put over 90 patents in his name, 

many  with of the Iviewit IP technologies at the heart of them and taken from business plans and 

other IP related materials JOAO accessed as IP Counsel.   Later it would be learned that Joao 

left PROSKAUER/MELTZER LIPPE GOLDSTEIN & SCHLISSEL to work for Ruskin, 

                                                 
82 Iviewit Involuntary Bankruptcy Files @ 
http://iviewit.tv/CompanyDocs/Utley%20Reale%20Hersh%20RYJO%20Bankruptcy%20nonsense.pdf  
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Moscou, Evans & Faltischek where Dean Skelos the New York Senator currently in ongoing 

corruption proceedings and convicted on all counts against him, putting up a defense of 

business as usual, which failed to vindicate him. 

282. That it is also learned that Joao later goes to the law firm of Dreier & Barritz LLP, where the 

now infamous attorney Marc Drier was sentenced in a “Ponzi” scheme thereafter.  

283. Eliot also learned on or about the same time that the Intellectual Properties represented by Utley 

to potential investors, investors and the financial institutions funding the Iviewit companies and 

those raising funds were not the ones that actually were filed with the US Patent Office. 

284. This exposure of the Intellectual Property crimes that were committed to the authorities and 

others began a terroristic mob style pattern and practice of orchestrated schemes to harm and 

potentially murder Eliot and his family by primarily lawyers, to deny him monetization of his 

inventions, deny him access to capital and even basic access to counsel to pursue his rights and 

claims and a full blunt force denial of due process in the courts and state and federal agencies 

through a series of conflicts of interests with the attorneys at law infiltrating and interfering 

improperly in virtually all of Eliot’s legal actions, as they do name very large law firms, 

legislators, judges and prosecutors as the perpetrators of the IP thefts as filed in his RICO and 

ANTITRUST lawsuit.  

285. This same pattern and practice continues to this day in both Florida Trust and Estate cases and 

this Illinois insurance litigation which should be viewed by this Court as nothing but a 

furtherance of a scheme to secret away monies and assets and deny any basic funds or monies to 

Plaintiff and his family literally to the point of basic survival as Plaintiff has been; a) forced on 

govt. Food Stamps to feed his 3 minor children who were supposed to be protected and 

provided for in Simon and Shirley’s Estate planning WITHOUT INTERRUPTION; b) had 
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home Security systems cut off; c) electric shut off and repeatedly threatened with shut off; d) 

homeowners insurance lapsed; e) health insurance lapsed, and other acts to deprive Counter 

Plaintiff of income and more.  

286. That after the death of his father Simon Eliot and his family’s worlds were literally blown apart 

financially, when the funds that were supposed to flow to Eliot and his family to protect them 

were intentionally and with scienter cut off, their kids were ripped from private school on the 

second day of classes and where the tuitions were funded by Simon and Shirley while living and 

despite a COLIN court order to pay the tuitions to keep them in school, TED and his counsel 

ROSE failed to comply and COLIN upon learning of this catastrophe did nothing despite 

claiming he was very upset and would deal with it shortly.  

287. That due to TED”S allegation that his father was murdered via poisoning Eliot and his family 

live in fear that this may be true, especially after an autopsy done a year or more after Simon’s 

death revealed elevated (beyond reportable levels in some instances) heavy metal toxins, 

including Arsenic and Cadmium. 

288. Simon and Shirley Bernstein in fact while living set up for Eliot through special planning efforts 

exclusively for Eliot and his family’s protection, vehicles designed and funded while living that 

provided income and security, including a paid for home and expenses for the home and family 

paid monthly all this careful planning for Eliot and his family resulting from the very real 

efforts to harm Eliot and his family, especially after viewing the car bombing and learning of 

death threats against their son and his family.   

289. That the probate crimes not only shut down all Eliot’s family income streams but further TED, 

TESCHER and SPALLINA then shut down a company that Simon had invested in, Telenet 
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Systems, LLC, that provided income to both Eliot and his lovely wife Candice at the time of 

Simon’s death.  

290. Without any income from the point of Simon’s death to now, as income for the family at 

Simon’s death was to be continued through the Estates and Trusts and other vehicles set up for 

Eliot and his family such as his Telenet interest and where the crimes were directly intended to 

leave Eliot and his family instead homeless and denied of their inheritancy with scienter and 

further bury the Iviewit stock and IP held by Simon and defeat the careful estate plans 

SPALLINA and TESCHER and others were contracted to protect. 

291. That it is alleged that the probate crimes were orchestrated in advance of Simon’s death when 

Simon refused to make changes to the plans of he and Shirley and never did so while living and 

so fraudulent documents were submitted to Courts and others to make it appear that Simon had 

changed he and his wife’s estate plans and allow TESCHER, SPALLINA and TED to seize 

Dominion and Control of the Estates and Trusts through FRAUD and begin looting of the assets 

with impunity with the cover and aid of the state court actors, all acting outside the color of law.   

292. That Shirley’s Trust was changed admittedly by SPALLINA Post Mortem and it is alleged this 

fraud was in order to execute a scheme to not only change beneficiaries illegally but more 

importantly to take fiduciary and legal control of the Estates and Trusts to enable them to steal 

off with the assets and convert funds to improper parties, all the while failing to provide legally 

required accountings and document transparency to beneficiaries and again through these 

crimes leave Eliot and his family with virtually nothing since the time of Simon’s death.  

293. As this Court is or should be aware, Eliot and his minor children were not even named as 

Necessary parties to this original Illinois insurance litigation even though all original parties 
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knew and should have known Eliot and his children were beneficiaries with interests in the case 

including Attorneys at Law and Fiduciaries TESCHER, SPALLINA and TED e.  

SPALLINA ADMITS NEW STATE AND FEDERAL CRIMES AT A “VALIDITY 
HEARING” BEFORE JUDGE PHILLIPS INCLUDING NEW ADMISSIONS OF 

FRAUD ON THE COURT AND MORE AND VIOLATES A CONSENT ORDER HE IS 
UNDER WITH THE SEC 

294. On or about September 28, 2015, the SEC out of Washington, DC publicly announced Insider 

Trading and related charges in a separate action against Florida attorneys and Third-Party 

Defendants herein SPALLINA and TESCHER.  

295. That SPALLINA pled guilty of criminal misconduct and the SEC Consent signed by 

SPALLINA states,  

“2. Defendant has agreed to plead guilty to criminal conduct relating to certain 
matters alleged in the complaint in this action and acknowledges that his conduct 
violated the federal securities laws.  Specifically, Defendant has agreed to plead 
guilty to a one count information which charges him with committing securities 
fraud involving insider trading in the securities of Pharmasset, Inc. in a matter to 
be filed in the United States District Court for the District of New Jersey, (the 
“Criminal Action”).” 
 

296. Yet, in a December 15, 2015 hearing under sworn oath as a witness in a Validity Hearing before 

Judge PHILLIPS, SPALLINA stated the following from the hearing transcript Page 93 Lines 

14-2283; 

14· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· You can answer the question, which 
15· · · · is, did you plead to a felony? 
16· · · · · · ·MR. BERNSTEIN:· Sorry, sir. 
17· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· I have not. 
18· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Okay.· Next question. 
19· ·BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
20· · · · Q.· ·Have you pled guilty to a misdemeanor? 
21· · · · A.· ·I have not. 
22· · · · Q.· ·Were you involved in a insider trading case? 
23· · · · · · ·MR. ROSE:· Objection.· Relevance. 

                                                 
83 December 15, 2015 PHILLIPS VALIDITY HEARING TRANSCRIPT 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20151215%20Hearing%20Transcript%20Phillips%2
0Validity%20Hearing.pdf  
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24· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Sustained.· Next question. 
 

297. Further, in the SEC Consent signed by SPALLINA reads, 

“12. Defendant understands and agrees to comply with the term of 17 C.P.R. f 
202,S(e). which provides in part that it is the Commission's policy ''not to permit 
a defendant or respondent to consent to a judgment or order that imposes a 
sanction while denying the allegations in the complaint or order for 
proceedings." As part of Defendant's agreement to comply with the terms of 
Section 202.5(e), Defendant acknowledges that he has agreed to plead guilty for 
related conduct as described in paragraph 2 above, and: (i) will not take any 
action or make or permit to be made any public statement denying, directly or 
indirectly, any allegation in the complaint or creating the impression that the 
complaint is without factual basis; (ii) will not make or permit to be made any 
public statement to the effect that Defendant does not admit the allegations of the 
complaint, or that this Consent contains no admission of the allegations; (iii) 
upon the filing of this Consent, Defendant hereby withdraws any papers filed in 
this action to the extent that they deny any allegation in the complaint; aud (iv) 
stipulates for purposes of exceptions to discharge sot forth in Section 523 of the 
Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C.. §523. that the allegations in the complaint are 
true…” 

 

298. SPALLINA further states under sworn testimony at the Validity Hearing regarding the trust 

documents he created being valid admits to fraudulently altering a Shirley Trust Document and 

sending to Attorney at Law Christine Yates, Esq. representing the minor children of Eliot via 

the mail,  

Page 95 Lines 14-25 and Page 96 Line 1-19, 

14· · · · Q.· ·Mr. Spallina, have you been in discussion with 
15· ·the Palm Beach County Sheriff's Office regarding the 
16· ·Bernstein matters? 
17· · · · · · ·MR. ROSE:· Objection.· Relevance. 
18· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Overruled. 
19· · · · · · ·You can answer that. 
20· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Yes, I have. 
21· ·BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
22· · · · Q.· ·And did you state to them that you 
23· ·fraudulently altered a Shirley trust document and then 
24· ·sent it through the mail to Christine Yates? 
25· · · · A.· ·Yes, I did. 
·1· · · · Q.· ·Have you been charged with that by the Palm 
·2· ·Beach County Sheriff yet? 
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·3· · · · A.· ·No, I have not. 
·4· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· How many times were you interviewed by 
·5· ·the Palm Beach County Sheriff? 
·6· · · · · · ·MR. ROSE:· Objection.· Relevance. 
·7· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Sustained. 
 8· ·BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
·9· · · · Q.· ·Did you mail a fraudulently signed document to 
10· ·Christine Yates, the attorney for Eliot Bernstein's 
11· ·minor children? 
12· · · · · · ·MR. ROSE:· Objection.· Relevance. 
13· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Overruled. 
14· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Yes. 
15· ·BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
16· · · · Q.· ·And when did you acknowledge that to the 
17· ·courts or anybody else?· When's the first time you came 
18· ·about and acknowledged that you had committed a fraud? 
19· · · · A.· ·I don't know that I did do that. 

 
299. Further, SPALLINA perjures himself in self contradiction when he tries to claim that his law 

firm did not mail Fraudulent documents to the court and commit further FRAUD ON THE 

COURT and then slips up and admits that they sent the fraudulent documents back to the court 

when he states; 

 
10· ·BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
11· · · · Q.· ·And what was she convicted for? 
12· · · · A.· ·She had notarized the waiver releases of 
13· ·accounting that you and your siblings had previously 
14· ·provided, and we filed those with the court. 
15· · · · Q.· ·We filed those with the court. 
16· · · · · · ·Your law firm submitted fraudulent documents 
17· ·to the court? 
18· · · · A.· ·No.· We filed -- we filed your original 
19· ·documents with the court that were not notarized, and 
20· ·the court had sent them back. 
21· · · · Q.· ·And then what happened? 
22· · · · A.· ·And then Kimberly forged the signatures and 
23· ·notarized those signatures and sent them back. 
 

300. That not only does SPALLINA admit to Felony criminal that have not yet been investigated but 

admits that his office members are also involved in proven Fraudulent Creation of a Shirley 

Trust and where MORAN has already admitted six counts of forgery for six separate parties 
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(including for a deceased Simon and one for Eliot) and fraudulent notarizations of such 

documents.  Spallina states in the hearing Pages 102-103, 

102 
20· · · · · · ·MR. BERNSTEIN:· Sure. 
21· ·BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
22· · · · Q.· ·You've testified here about Kimberly Moran. 
23· · · · · · ·Can you describe your relationship with her? 
24· · · · A.· ·She's been our long-time assistant in the 
25· ·office. 
 
103 
·1· · · · Q.· ·Was she convicted of felony fraudulent 
·2· ·notarization in the Estate of Shirley Bernstein? 
·3· · · · · · ·MR. ROSE:· Objection.· Relevance. 
·4· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Overruled. 
·5· · · · · · ·You're asking if she was convicted of a felony 
·6· · · · with respect to the Estate of Shirley Bernstein? 
·7· · · · · · ·You can answer the question. 
·8· · · · · · ·MR. BERNSTEIN:· Correct. 
·9· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· I believe she was. 

 

301. SPALLINA then claims that it is standard practice for he and his clients to sign sworn Final 

Waivers under penalty of perjury with knowingly and irrefutably false statements.  Then 

SPALLINA had a deceased Simon file that alleged sworn document with the Court as Personal 

Representative on a date after his death while acting as Personal Representative as part of a 

Fraud on the Court and Fraud on the Beneficiaries and Interested Parties.  SPALLINA states in 

testimony as follows, 

Pages 108-110 
17· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Are you aware of an April 9th full 
18· ·waiver that was allegedly signed by Simon and you? 
19· · · · A.· ·Yeah.· That was the waiver that he had signed. 
20· ·And then in the May meeting, we discussed the five of 
21· ·you, all the children, getting back the waivers of the 
22· ·accountings. 
23· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And in that April 9th full waiver you 
24· ·used to close my mother's estate, does Simon state that 
25· ·he has all the waivers from all of the parties? 
·1· · · · A.· ·He does.· We sent out -- he signed that, and 
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·2· ·we sent out the waivers to all of you. 
·3· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· So on April 9th of 2012, Simon signed, 
·4· ·with your presence, because your signature's on the 
·5· ·document, a document stating he had all the waivers in 
·6· ·his possession from all of his children. 
·7· · · · · · ·Had you sent the waivers out yet as of 
·8· ·April 9th? 
… 
20· ·BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
21· · · · Q.· ·April 9th, 2012, you have a signed full waiver 
22· ·of Simon's that says that he is in possession of all of 
23· ·the signed waivers of all of the parties? 
24· · · · A.· ·Standard operating procedure, to have him 
25· ·sign, and then to send out the documents to the kids. 
·.. 
·1· · · · Q.· ·Was Simon in possession -- because it's a 
·2· ·sworn statement of Simon saying, I have possession of 
·3· ·these waivers of my children on today, April 9th, 
·4· ·correct, the day you two signed that? 
·5· · · · · · ·Okay.· So if you hadn't sent out the waivers 
·6· ·yet to the -- 
·7· · · · A.· ·I'm not certain when the waivers were sent 
·8· ·out. 
·9· · · · Q.· ·Were they sent out after the -- 
10· · · · A.· ·I did not send them out. 
11· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· More importantly, when did you receive 
12· ·those?· Was it before April 9th or on April 9th? 
13· · · · A.· ·We didn't receive the first one until May. 
14· ·And it was your waiver that we received. 
15· · · · Q.· ·So how did you allow Simon, as his attorney, 
16· ·to sign a sworn statement saying he had possession of 
17· ·all of the waivers in April if you didn't get mine 'til 
18· ·May? 
19· · · · · · ·MR. ROSE:· Objection.· I think it's relevance 
20· · · · and cumulative.· He's already answered. 
21· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· What's the relevance? 
22· · · · · · ·MR. BERNSTEIN:· Oh, this is very relevant. 
23· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· What is the relevance on the issue 
24· · · · that I have to rule on today? 
25· · · · · · ·MR. BERNSTEIN:· On the validity?· Well, it's 
1· · · · relevant.· If any of these documents are relevant, 
·2· · · · this is important if it's a fraud. 
·3· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I'll sustain the objection. 
·4· · · · · · ·MR. BERNSTEIN:· Okay.· Can I -- okay. 
·5· ·BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
·6· · · · Q.· ·When did you get -- did you get back prior to 
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·7· ·Simon's death all the waivers from all the children? 
·8· · · · A.· ·No, we did not. 
·9· · · · Q.· ·So in Simon's April 9th document where he 
10· ·says, he, Simon, on April 9th has all the waivers from 
11· ·his children while he's alive, and you didn't even get 
12· ·one 'til after he passed from one of his children, how 
13· ·could that be a true statement? 
14· · · · · · ·MR. ROSE:· Objection.· Relevance.· Cumulative. 
15· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Sustained. 

 

302. SPALLINA also perjures himself under sworn oath at the hearing when testifying to the status 

of his Florida Bar license, which at this time he is listed as “ineligible84” to practice law in the 

state of Florida, when he states in the December 15, 2015 hearing, 

Page 91 
7· ·BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
·8· · · · Q.· ·Mr. Spallina, you were called today to provide 
·9· ·some expert testimony, correct, on the -- 
10· · · · A.· ·No, I was not. 
11· · · · Q.· ·Oh, okay.· You're just going based on your 
12· ·doing the work as Simon Bernstein's attorney and Shirley 
13· ·Bernstein's attorney? 
14· · · · A.· ·Yes. 
15· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Are you still an attorney today? 
16· · · · A.· ·I am not practicing. 
17· · · · Q.· ·Can you give us the circumstances regarding 
18· ·that? 
19· · · · A.· ·I withdrew from my firm. 
 
Pages 120-121 
19· ·BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
20· · · · Q.· ·Did you -- are you a member of the Florida 
21· ·Bar? 
22· · · · A.· ·Yes, I am. 
23· · · · Q.· ·Currently? 
24· · · · A.· ·Yes, I am. 
25· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· You said before you surrendered your 
·1· ·license. 
·2· · · · A.· ·I said I withdrew from my firm.· It wasn't 

                                                 
84 Florida Bar Robert Spallina Inelligble to Practice Law 
https://www.floridabar.org/wps/portal/flbar/home/attysearch/mprofile/!ut/p/a1/jc_LDoIwEAXQT-
pthRaWo6mkRazxgdCNYUWaKLowfr_42LioOrtJzs3cYZ41zA_dLfTdNZyH7vjYvTxACM3dBrawxEHlOl3
ZqgSEHEE7girnxJMMNktoDlOr2qgtF7RM_8sjMoRf-T3zn8RJNQO5BXKtp0AxeYNIRTj-
HTx_eJ2Il7ycdg2C6e8_WXgh/dl5/d5/L2dBISEvZ0FBIS9nQSEh/?flag=Y&mid=497381  
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·3· ·that I was not practicing. 
 

303. Spallina further Perjures his testimony when asked if the Fraudulent Shirley Trust he created by 

Post Mortem fraudulently altering a Shirley Amendment and disseminated through the mail 

attempted to change the beneficiaries of the Shirley Trust and he answered no.  Yet, the 

following analysis shows different; 

22· ·BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
23· · · · Q.· ·Did the fraudulently altered document change 
24· ·the beneficiaries that were listed in Shirley's trust? 
25· · · · A.· ·They did not. 

304. Now comparing the language in the two documents the Court can see that this statement is 

wholly untrue.  From the alleged Shirley Trust document,  

“Notwithstanding the foregoing, as I have adequately provided for them during my 
lifetime, for purposes of the dispositions made under this Trust, my children, TED S. 
BERNSTEIN ("TED") and PAMELA B. SIMON ("PAM'), and their respective lineal 
descendants shall be deemed to have predeceased the survivor of my spouse 
and me, provided, however, if my children, ELIOT BERNSTEIN, JILL !ANTONI and 
LISA S. FRIEDSTEIN, and their lineal descendants all predecease the survivor of my 
spouse and me, then TED and PAM, and their respective lineal descendants shall not be 
deemed to have predeceased me and shall be eligible beneficiaries for purposes of the 
dispositions made hereunder.”85 

 
305. Then the language from the fraudulent amendment states; 

 
2.    I hereby amend the last sentence of Paragraph E. of Article III. to read as follows: 
  
"Notwithstanding the foregoing, as my spouse and I have adequately provided for them 
during our lifetimes, for purposes of the dispositions made under this Trust, my children, 
TED S. BERNSTEIN ("TED") and PAMELA B. SIMON ("PAM '), shall be deemed to 
have predeceased the survivor of my spouse and me, provided, however, if my children, 
ELIOT BERNSTEIN, JILL IANTONI and LISA S. FRIEDSTEIN, and their respective 
lineal descendants all predecease the survivor of my spouse and me, then TED and PAM 

                                                 
85 Shirley Trust Page 7 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/Shirley%20Trust%20plus%20fraudulent%20amend
ment%202.pdf  
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shall not be deemed to have predeceased the survivor of my spouse and me and shall 
become eligible beneficiaries for purposes of the dispositions made hereunder.86" 

 
306. Clearly the fraudulent amendment attempts to remove from the predeceased language TED and 

PAMELA’s lineal descendants from being excluded by removing them from the original trust 

language through a fraudulent amendment as being considered predeceased and thus change the 

beneficiaries of the Shirley Trust and this perjury changed the outcome of the validity hearing 

adding cause for a rehearing and voiding the Order that resulted, which was already void and of 

no effect since Judge Phillips should have already voluntarily mandatorily disqualified himself 

from the proceedings prior to holding hearings.  

307. That in relation to this very case before the Federal Court in SPALLINA’s testimony under oath 

at the Validity Hearing SPALLINA states, 

Pages 154-55 

20· ·BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
21· · · · Q.· ·You referenced an insurance policy earlier, 
22· ·life insurance policy, that you said you never saw; is 
23· ·that correct? 
24· · · · A.· ·Yes. 
25· · · · Q.· ·And was that part of the estate plans? 
1· · · · A.· ·We never did any planning with that.· That was 
·2· ·an insurance policy that your father had taken out 
·3· ·30 years before.· He had created a trust in 1995 for 
·4· ·that.· That was not a part of any of the planning that 
·5· ·we did for him. 
·6· · · · Q.· ·Did you file a death benefit claim on behalf 
·7· ·of that policy? 
·8· · · · · · ·MR. ROSE:· Objection.· Relevancy. 
·9· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Sustained. 
 

308. This statement of SPALLINA’s that he had nothing to do with the “planning with that” makes 

his actions in the insurance matters before this Court questionable, as if he had nothing to do 

                                                 
86 Spallina Fraudulent Shirley Trust Page 30 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/Shirley%20Trust%20plus%20fraudulent
%20amendment%202.pdf 
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with the planning of the policy and the lost and missing trust involved in this action alleged to 

be the beneficiary, how in the world did Spallina file an insurance death benefit claim87 for the 

policy benefits acting and singing as the claimant on the policy, in the fiduciary capacity of 

“Trustee” of the 1995 Missing, Lost or Suppressed Trust and acting as the Policy Beneficiary, 

which appears now to be part of the alleged Insurance Fraud, Mail and Wire Fraud alleged in 

Petitioner’s pleadings that is now further supported by his perjurious statement in the Florida 

court denying any involvement. 

309. The Court should note that while SPALLINA was filing a death benefit claim as Trustee for the 

lost and missing trust he claims to have had no involvement with, while he was simultaneously 

claiming to Eliot that a Florida Probate Court order88 would be necessary to determine who the 

trustee, beneficiaries, etc. of a lost and missing trust would be89, he was secretly and in conspire 

with others filing claims for the Policy and when that failed filing this Lawsuit, without 

notifying Eliot or the Creditor or the Probate Court of this action and failing to including Eliot 

as part of the legal action, all as part of a complex insurance fraud against Eliot and 

Beneficiaries of the Estate and the Creditor of the Estate, STANSBURY, and attempting to have 

the insurance money deposited to his law firm’s trust account acting as the Beneficiary of the 

Policy he claims to have nothing to do with, acting as Trustee of the lost trust he claims to have 

                                                 
87 Spallina Fraudulent Insurance Claim Form He Signs as Beneficiary of the Policy as Trust of a Trust 
and Policy he has claimed he had nothing to do with, which is DECLINED by Heritage -  See Page 05 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20121101%20Heritage%20Claim%20Form%20Spa
llina%20Insurance%20Fraud.pdf , Spallina also represents in the correspondences to the carrier that he 
is Trustee of LaSalle National Trust, NA, which he is not but that is because LaSalle is the Primary 
Beneficiary. 
88January 22, 2013 SPALLINA Letter Re Insurance 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20130122%20Ted%20Letter%20and%20Spallina%
20Letter%20re%20Insurance.pdf  
89 TESCHER & SPALLINA Prepared Settlement Regarding Insurance Policy 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/EXHIBIT%205%20-
%2020130205%20Eliot%20Letter%20to%20Spallina%20et%20al%20Regarding%20Analysis%20of%20
SAMR.pdf  
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never seen and impersonating himself as the Primary Beneficiary of the Policy, as Trustee of the 

LaSalle National Trust NA, of which he is none of. 

310. That the fraudulent claim filed by SPALLINA is what led to this Federal Lawsuit being filed as 

a breach of contract lawsuit for HERITAGE failing to pay the claim to SPALLINA until he 

could prove the trust and that he was Trustee, of the trust he claims in court under sworn 

testimony to have had NOTHING to do with. 

311. That the Court must question where Judge PHILLIPS was during the hearing where confessions 

to new crimes of Fraud on the Court, Mail Fraud, Fraud on the Beneficiaries (and Eliot’s minor 

children’s counsel, Christine Yates of Tripp Scott law firm) and more are being admitted to on 

the record by an Officer of the Court SPALLINA, a former Co-Trustee and Co-Personal 

Representative along with his partner in the crime and the ringleader another former Co-Trustee 

and Co-Personal Representative, TESCHER who also is under an SEC Consent Order for 

Insider Trading and one look at the transcript will find Judge PHILLIPS “doodling” (Page 138 

Line 1) during the hearing and more interested in threatening Candice Bernstein with contempt 

of court repeatedly, even removing her from the defense table and sending her to the audience 

section and yet failing to force SPALLINA to show cause regarding the crimes he committed 

and admitted to the court, in fact sustaining Eliot from probing these serious felony admissions 

including Fraud on the Court and Beneficiaries in the validity matters SPALLINA was 

testifying about and where SPALLINA’s felonies were far more serious in nature than 

Candice’s alleged contempt for asking ROSE in the hearing to turn an exhibit for all to see and 

handing Eliot a document (Page 24 Lines 12-23 and Page 127 Lines 3-7).  

312. Further, the Court must question and call to account for what Judge PHILLIPS did after 

learning of these crimes of the star witness of the “validity” hearing, some admitted by 
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SPALLINA to have not been investigated or reported by him at the time and thus ripe for 

prosecution and now having pleadings which show the perjured statements in violation of his 

SEC Consent Order, did he take control to find out how and who the fraudulent documents were 

posited in the Court as part of newly admitted FRAUDS ON THE COURT and has Judge 

PHILLIPS contacted the SEC to report the violation of SPALLINA’s consent order or did he 

contact and report the crimes of Fraud on the Court to the IG of the Court or the Chief Judge or 

did he contact the Federal Bureau of Investigations regarding the admitted mail fraud or did he 

have his bailiff, a member of the Palm Beach County Sheriff deputies arrest SPALLINA on the 

spot?   

313. Judge PHILLIPS appears to have done nothing but take SPALLINA’s sole testimony to the 

validity of the documents (some which SPALLINA admitted in the hearing he and others had 

fraudulently created) and in a bizarre ruling that defies logic and appears outside the color of 

law, then  ruled that the documents were valid with no other parties present to confirm the 

perjurious Felon’s testimony whose Hands are Unclean, credibility shattered and one certainly 

must ask why the Trustee TED did not call ANY of the other witnesses or multiple notaries and 

instead choose SPALLINA his business associate and TED’s counsel as ALLEGED PR and 

Trustee who admitted to PBSO that he committed fraud that altered documents to benefit TED’s 

family, which had been wholly considered PREDECEASED prior to the fraud in Shirley Trust.  

TED filed for the validity hearing after his counsel committed fraud to benefit him and his only 

witness is his counsel that has committed fraud and TED in his own words stated under sworn 

oath at the Validity hearing, 

Page 206-210 

25· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Ted, you were made aware of Robert 
1· ·Spallina's fraudulent alteration of a trust document of 
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·2· ·your mother's when? 
·3· · · · A.· ·I believe that was in the early 2013 or '14. 
·4· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And when you found out, you were the 
·5· ·fiduciary of Shirley's trust, allegedly? 
·6· · · · A.· ·I'm not sure I understand the question. 
·7· · · · Q.· ·When you found out that there was a fraudulent 
·8· ·altercation [sic] of a trust document, were you the 
·9· ·fiduciary in charge of Shirley's trust? 
10· · · · A.· ·I was trustee, yes.· I am trustee, yes. 
11· · · · Q.· ·And your attorneys, Tescher and Spallina, and 
12· ·their law firm are the one who committed that fraud, 
13· ·correct, who altered that document? 
14· · · · A.· ·That's what's been admitted to by them, 
15· ·correct. 
16· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· So you became aware that your counsel 
17· ·that you retained as trustee had committed a fraud, 
18· ·correct? 
19· · · · A.· ·Correct. 
20· · · · Q.· ·What did you do immediately after that? 
21· · · · A.· ·The same day that I found out, I contacted 
22· ·counsel.· I met with counsel on that very day.· I met 
23· ·with counsel the next day.· I met with counsel the day 
24· ·after that. 
25· · · · Q.· ·Which counsel? 
·1· · · · A.· ·Alan Rose. 
… 
P 209-210 
24· ·BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
25· · · · Q.· ·Have you seen the original will and trust of 
·1· ·your mother's? 
·2· · · · A.· ·Can you define original for me? 
·3· · · · Q.· ·The original. 
·4· · · · A.· ·The one that's filed in the court? 
·5· · · · Q.· ·Original will or the trust. 
·6· · · · A.· ·I've seen copies of the trusts. 
·7· · · · Q.· ·Have you done anything to have any of the 
·8· ·documents authenticated since learning that your 
·9· ·attorneys had committed fraud in altering dispositive 
10· ·documents that you were in custody of? 
11· · · · · · ·MR. ROSE:· Objection.· Relevance. 
12· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Overruled. 
13· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· I have not. 
14· ·BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
15· · · · Q.· ·So you as the trustee have taken no steps to 
16· ·validate these documents; is that correct? 
17· · · · A.· ·Correct. 
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314. TED further shows he is an incompetent Trustee at his validity hearing where he admits having 

not seen the original documents, not bringing any of them to the hearing to prove them valid 

and that he did “NOTHING” to validate them and did not even have them forensically analyzed 

or request the originals back from his former disgraced counsel after their admission of 

fraudulent created trusts and forged documents posited into the court record in his mother’s 

estate and elsewhere and the admitted fraudulent use of his deceased father by his former 

counsel to commit fraud upon the court, fraud upon the beneficiaries and close his deceased 

mother’s estate (despite a COURT ORDER for TESCHER and SPALLINA to turn over “ALL” 

RECORDS) . 

315. The formal Complaint filed by the SEC contains breaches of fiduciary duties by SPALLINA 

and TESCHER that are almost identical to the claims Eliot has made in the Florida Probate 

Courts of Palm Beach County since at least on or about May of 201390 and91and92and93.   

316. Multiple requests for Discovery from TED in the Florida Probate Courts  have been made 

including by short term counsel Brendan Pratt, Esq.94 but no voluntary compliance by TED has 

occurred and no voluntary Discovery by TED produced.   

                                                 
90 September 28, 2015 SEC Press Release Regarding SPALLINA and TESCHER INSIDER 
TRADING CHARGES,  “SEC Charges Five With Insider Trading, Including Two Attorneys 
and an Accountant” 
http://www.sec.gov/news/pressrelease/2015-213.html  
91 September 28, 2015 SEC Government Complaint filed against TESCHER and SPALLINA @  
http://www.sec.gov/litigation/complaints/2015/comp-pr2015-213.pdf  
92 October 01, 2015 SEC Consent Orders Felony Insider Trading SPALLINA signed  September 16, 
2015 and TESCHER signed June 15, 2014  
http://www.iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/2015%20Spallina%20and%20Tesc
her%20SEC%20Settlement%20Consent%20Orders%20Insider%20Trading.pdf  
93 May 06, 2013 Bernstein Emergency Petition Florida Probate Simon and Shirley Estate Cases 
@ 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20130506%20FINAL%20SIGNED%20P
etition%20Freeze%20Estates%20Orginal%20Large.pdf 
94 November 01, 2013 Production Request Ted Bernstein 
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NY Moreland Commission and Other Related Info 

317. Eliot had made inquiry to the Moreland Commission to testify and had submitted information 

regarding Public Office Corruption in both the State of New York and State of Florida, 

including information regarding Public Office Complaints against members of the Florida 

Supreme Court, including former 15th Judicial Judge Jorge Labarga who was the main 

complained of party in Eliot’s Court Corruption complaints and Bar Complaints in Florida and 

who is now Chief Justice of the Florida Supreme Court and Florida Bar Members (including 

members of Brian O’Connell’s firm Ciklin a one Jerald Beer, Esq. 

318. The Honorable Preet Bharara who has now taken down several of the most prominent 

Lawmakers from both parties in a New York Corruption Probe unparalleled and gaining 

worldwide recognition and applause, has recently revealed that he has seized the Moreland 

Commission inquiries for further investigation and where it is presumed that Eliot’s inquiry has 

also been acquired by US Attorney’s. 

U.S. Attorneys » Southern District of New York » News » Press Releases 
Department of Justice 
U.S. Attorney’s Office 
Southern District of New York 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 
Monday, January 11, 2016 
Statement Of U.S. Attorney Preet Bharara Relating To Moreland Commission 
Investigation 
  
“After a thorough investigation of interference with the operation of the Moreland 
Commission and its premature closing, this Office has concluded that, absent any 
additional proof that may develop, there is insufficient evidence to prove a federal crime.  
We continue to have active investigations related to substantive inquiries that were being 
conducted by the Moreland Commission at the time of its closure.” 
  
16-009 
USAO - New York, Southern 

                                                                                                                                                         
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20131101%20ELIOT%20BERNSTEINS%20FIRST
%20REQUEST%20FOR%20PRODUCTION%20OF%20DOCUMENTS%20AND%20THINGS%20PROP
OUNDED%20ON%20TED%20S%20%20BERNSTEIN.pdf  
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Updated January 11, 2016 
http://www.justice.gov/usao-sdny/pr/statement-us-attorney-preet-bharara-relating-
moreland-commission-investigation 
 

319. That the knowledge that Bharara has taken over the Moreland inquiries to the US Attorney's 

Office may provide an answer as to why the Florida Courts are denying due process to Eliot and 

participating in a massive court controlled conspiracy against his rights, involving many of the 

same parties as were in his prior complaints now presumed to be before the US Attorney.  This 

may also explain the need to cover up the current Fraud on the Court, Fraud by the Court and 

Fraud on Eliot and his family at all costs at this time and explain the retaliation and abuse of 

process against Eliot’s family. 

320. Due to the Palm Beach Posts Guardianship series exposing widespread Guardianship abuses 

Eliot and Candice fear that judge Phillips may abuse the Guardianship process to gain control 

over Eliot’s children and where there is already volumes of online complaints95 against Judge 

Phillips this becomes even more frightening.   

                                                 
95 “Florida Judge is Taking Children from Good Mothers and Placing Them with Abusers”  
Daily Kos Sunday Jul 20, 2014 · 9:10 AM EDT 
http://www.dailykos.com/story/2014/7/20/1315240/-Florida-Judge-is-Taking-Children-from-Good-
Mothers-and-Placing-Them-with-Abusers  
and 
Families Against Court Travesties, Inc. - John L. Phillips’ Cases 
 C.C.S.’s Story - https://factscourtwatch.com/c-c-s/  
 B.D.’s Story - https://factscourtwatch.com/b-d/  
 E.C.’s Story - https://factscourtwatch.com/e-c/ 

J.J.’s Story - https://factscourtwatch.com/j-j/ 
M.J.’s Story - https://factscourtwatch.com/m-j/ 
M.M.’s Story - https://factscourtwatch.com/m-j/ 
T.R.’s Story - https://factscourtwatch.com/t-r/  
https://factscourtwatch.com/john-l-phillips-cases/  

and 
John. L Phillips Racist and Biased Judge John L. Phillips Palm Beach Gardens Florida 
http://www.ripoffreport.com/r/John-L-Phillips/Palm-Beach-Gardens-Florida/John-L-Phillips-Racist-and-
Biased-Judge-John-L-Phillips-Palm-Beach-Gardens-Florida-1177334  
and 
Judge John Phillips rules Elderly People Incapacitated Violating the Elderly Rights of Due Process 
http://ireport.cnn.com/docs/DOC-163498  
and 
Judge John L. Phillips from Palm Beach Garden is a lose cannon a Prejudicial biased Judge that is 
hurting our families. 
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321. That Eliot has been a thorn in the side of these lawyers and judges for many years and with their 

knowledge that if Eliot succeeds at some point in breaking through the corruption to have a fair 

and impartial hearing and honest investigations that they may lose everything and many of them 

may end up in prison on very serious counts including alleged attempted murder and murder 

according to Ted and others of Simon and thus all of these crimes in the Florida Probate matters 

may be carefully planned attacks on Eliot and his family to suppress and destroy all records and 

evidence of Eliot and Simon’s relating to Iviewit before investigators can prosecute them. 

322. Eliot has reason to fear that the there is no due process in Florida and in fact the opposite, a 

massive Obstruction by attorneys and judges and other State Agencies96 Eliot has complained of 

working hand in hand, allowing years of records to disappear from Simon, allowing forged and 

fraudulently notarized documents to be submitted to the courts to further the scheme and 

nothing done when they are caught by the self regulating legal system that has failed, Judge 

Colin directly interfering with state criminal investigations to shutter them from investigating 

the Fraud on the Court and Fraud by the Court Officers and Judges alleged and proven in some 

instances already. 

323. Therefore this Court and the US Attorneys with Eliot’s Moreland Complaint may not only lose 

value production documents necessary to prove the truth of this lawsuit but if the Florida 

Probate Court continues to remove Eliot’s rights as a beneficiary, standing and pleadings, this 

Court may lose Eliot as material and fact witness and all Eliot’s records as they try and 

                                                                                                                                                         
http://www.avvo.com/legal-answers/judge-john-l--phillips-from-palm-beach-garden-is-a-1626549.html  
and 
Judge John Phillips of West Palm Florida Probate courts does nothing to end the wall of corruption in the 
Florida Probate Courts. Ted Bernstein Life Insurance Concepts, Judge Martin Colin, Donald Tescher 
Florida Attorney; Florida Probate Courts. 
http://tedbernsteinreport.blogspot.com/2016/02/judge-john-phillips-of-west-palm.html  
 
96Iviewit Investigation Master List  
www.iviewit.tv/CompanyDocs/INVESTIGATIONS%20MASTER.htm   
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repeatedly charge Eliot with contempt and more in efforts to have him imprisoned and his 

children placed in unnecessary and illegal guardianships obtained through fraud on the court 

and fraud by the court as is the case in tomorrows hearing before Judge Phillips and while jailed 

may move to evict his family from their home and destroy all records in his possession.   

324. Finally, due to the heavy metal poison results of his father and the attempted car bombing of his 

family, Eliot fears that with the US Attorney now involved they may rush to finally perfect their 

attempt and murder Eliot and his family.  The Court’s injunctive power could be no greater to 

protect its authority and protect the main witness to the facts in this Court’s case and where 

Eliot is a Whistleblower on the Court Corruption he is in need of Federal protection of his life 

and properties, all important to this Court’s determination of the matters before it and all being 

intentionally interfered with by the Florida Court State Actors who have no immunity for such 

egregious and criminal misconduct in efforts to thwart Eliot’s due process rights and interfere 

with this Court’s matter as well. 

325. Eliot apologizes to the Court for any filing errors in advance but this is an emergency situation 

where my life and the life of my wife and children and all of our properties appear in imminent 

danger and this Court must act instantly to preserve the powers of this Court despite any 

technical drafting errors by a Pro Se party.   

326. There are so many due process violations and obstructions occurring rapidly that it would take a 

several hundred page pleading to attempt to deal with all of this ongoing criminal misconduct 

and civil torts.   

327. In seeking leave to amend the counter complaint I will try and put the remainder of items in a 

proper pleading within two weeks so the Court can further assess the merits of the case. 
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Parties and Claims to be Added on Leave to Amend for Declaratory Judgment, 42 USC 
Sec. 1983 and other Fiduciary, tortious interference, negligence and State Claims - See 

Exhibit A 
 

I respectfully seek Leave to file an Amended Complaint / Counter-Cross Complaint however 

properly labeled adding parties and claims as set forth above.  

 

  

WHEREFORE, Eliot I. Bernstein, Pro Se Third Party Defendant/Cross Plaintiff 
respectfully prays for an Order:  
 

1. Immediate Injunctive Relief under the All Writs Act,  Anti-Injunction Act and 

FRCP against Ted Bernstein and counsel and representatives acting on his 

behalf specifically including but not limited to attorney Alan M. Rose, against 

the Estate of Simon Bernstein acting by and through local Illinois counsel and 

by Florida PRs Brian O’Connell and Joy Foglietta, against Pamela Simon, 

David Simon, Adam Simon, Jill Bernstein-Iantoni, Lisa Friedstein, and against 

proceedings in the Florida Probate Courts of Palm Beach County and other 

parties deemed proper by this Court, temporarily enjoining said parties from 

further proceedings in the Florida Probate Courts herein until further order of 

this Court, from disposing, selling, transferring, encumbering or in any way 

disposing of any assets, properties as specified herein, and further preserving 

any and all evidence, documents, files, notes, bills, statements, mail, emails, 

and other evidence herein;  

2. Specifically Enjoining at least Temporarily Florida Probate Court Judge 

Phillips on Thursday, Feb. 25, 2016 at 3:15 PM EST until further Order of this 
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Court;  

3. Permitting the Amendment of the original counter-complaint filed herein to add 

claims under 42 USC Sec. 1983 and other pendant state law claims including 

but not limited to tortious interference with rights of expectancy and 

inheritance;  

4. Granting appropriate leave to further Amend said complaint to add specified 

known parties and have said parties served by the US Marshal service or 

agency determined by this Court;  

5. Granting leave to Amend to include a Declaratory Judgment on specified 

counts pertaining to Trusts, Wills, Instruments, and the Validity and 

Construction thereof; 

6. Waiving any requirement for Bonding by Eliot I. Bernstein under extra-

ordinary circumstances and imposing the requirement of bonding against 

specified wrongdoers herein if necessary.   

7. Such other and further relief as to this Court may seem just and proper.   

 
 

I declare under the penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States that the 
foregoing is true and correct. 
 

DATED: Wednesday, February 24, 2016 
  
Note: All URL EXHIBITS contained herein are hereby incorporated by reference in 
entirety herein.  The Court should consider printing these URL exhibits as recent hacking 
of Eliot’s website and mail have caused his site to repeatedly be shut down at critical times 
making drafting and filing of complaints even more difficult.  To ensure the court that 
these links do not disappear copying them down and printing them is requested. 
 
 

         /s/ Eliot Ivan Bernstein 
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                                                           Eliot Ivan Bernstein 

                                                         2753 NW 34th St. 
                                                         Boca Raton, FL 33434 

                                                         Telephone (561) 245-8588 

                                                         iviewit@iviewit.tv 

                                                         www.iviewit.tv 
                      
  

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
  

I HEREBY CERTIFY that on Wednesday, February 24, 2016 I electronically filed the 
foregoing with the Clerk of the Court using CM/ECF.  I also certify that the foregoing is being 
served this day on all counsel of record identified below via transmission of Notices of 
Electronic Filing generated by CM/ECF or in some other authorized manner. 
  
  
        /s/ Eliot Ivan Bernstein 

                                                         Eliot Ivan Bernstein 

                                                         2753 NW 34th St. 
                                                         Boca Raton, FL 33434 

                                                         Telephone (561) 245-8588 

                                                         iviewit@iviewit.tv 

                                                         www.iviewit.tv 
 

SERVICE LIST 
 

James J. Stamos and 
Kevin Horan 
STAMOS & TRUCCO LLP 
One East Wacker Drive, Third 
Floor 
Chicago, IL 60601 
Attorney for Intervenor, 
Estate of Simon Bernstein 

Adam Simon, Esq.
#6205304 
303 East Wacker Drive, Suite 2725 
Chicago, Illinois 60601 
Attorney for Plaintiffs 
(312) 819-0730 

Ted Bernstein,  
880 Berkeley 
Boca Raton, FL 33487 
tbernstein@lifeinsuranceconcepts.c
om 
 

Alan B. Rose, Esq. 
PAGE,MRACHEK,FITZGERALD
, ROSE, KONOPKA, THOMAS & 
WEISS, P.A. 
505 South Flagler Drive, Suite 600 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 
arose@pm-law.com 
and 
arose@mrachek-law.com 

Pamela Simon 
President 
STP Enterprises, Inc. 
303 East Wacker Drive 
Suite 210 
Chicago IL 60601-5210 
psimon@stpcorp.com 
 

Estate of Simon Bernstein 
Personal Representative 
Brian M. O'Connell, Partner and 
Joielle Foglietta, Esq. 
Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O’Connell 
515 N Flagler Drive 
20th Floor 
West Palm Beach, FL 33401 
boconnell@ciklinlubitz.com 
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Jill Iantoni 
2101 Magnolia Lane 
Highland Park, IL 60035 
jilliantoni@gmail.com 

Lisa Friedstein

2142 Churchill Lane 
Highland Park, IL 60035 
Lisa@friedsteins.com 
lisa.friedstein@gmail.com 
lisa@friedsteins.com 

David B. Simon, Esq. 
#6205304 
303 East Wacker Drive, Suite 2725 
Chicago, Illinois 60601 
Attorney for Plaintiffs 
(312) 819-0730 
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EXHIBIT A - LIST OF COUNTER COMPLAINT DEFENDANTS TO BE INCLUDED 

IN THE AMENDED COMPLAINT 
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EXHIBIT A  

COUNTER COMPLAINT DEFENDANTS / PARTIES 
 
COUNTER-DEFENDANTS/THIRD PARTY DEFENDANTS FOR AMENDED 
COMPLAINT AND PARTY DESIGNATIONS 

 
1. Hon. Jorge Labarga, Chief Justice of the Florida Supreme Court, professionally; 
2. Hon. Jorge Labarga, Chief Justice of the Florida Supreme Court, personally;  
3. Judge Martin Colin, professionally; 
4. Judge Martin Colin, personally; 
5. Judge David French, professionally; 
6. Judge David French, personally; 
7. Judge Howard Coates, professionally; 
8. Judge Howard Coates, personally; 
9. Judge John Phillips, professionally; 
10. Judge John Phillips, personally; 
11. The State of Florida; 
12. The Florida Supreme Court; 
13. The 4th District Court of Appeals; 
14. Palm Beach County Probate and Circuit Courts; 
15. The County of Palm Beach; 
16. The Palm Beach County Sheriff; 
17. Detective Ryan Miller; 
18. Detective David Groover; 
19. Detective Andrew Panzer; 
20. Captain Carol Gregg; 
21. Theodore Bernstein, personally; 
22. Theodore Bernstein, as alleged Trustee of the Shirley Trust; 
23. Theodore Bernstein as Personal Representative of the Shirley Estate; 
24. Theodore Bernstein as alleged Trustee of the Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance 

Trust Dtd. 6/21/95;  
25. Theodore Bernstein, acting in any fiduciary capacity, corporate and company capacity 

and trustee capacity relevant herein;  
26. Pamela Beth Simon, personally; 
27. Pamela Beth Simon, acting in any fiduciary capacity, corporate and company capacity 

and trustee capacity relevant herein; 
28. Lisa Sue Friedstein, personally; 
29. Lisa Sue Friedstein, as Natural Guardian of minor CF; 
30. Jill Marla Iantoni, personally; 
31. Jill Marla Iantoni, as Natural Guardian of minor JI; 
32. David B. Simon, Esq., professionally; 
33. David B. Simon, Esq., personally; 
34. Adam Simon, Esq., professionally; 
35. Adam Simon, Esq., personally; 
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36. The Simon Law Firm and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives;   

37. Robert L. Spallina, Esq., personally; 
38. Robert L. Spallina, Esq., professionally; 
39. Robert L. Spallina, Esq., former alleged Co-Trustee of the Simon Bernstein Trust; 
40. Robert L. Spallina, Esq., former alleged Co-Personal Representative of the Simon 

Bernstein Estate; 
41. Donald R. Tescher, Esq. personally; 
42. Donald R. Tescher, Esq. professionally; 
43. Donald R. Tescher, Esq. former alleged Co-Trustee of the Simon Bernstein Trust;   
44. Donald R. Tescher, Esq. former alleged Co-Personal Representative of the Simon 

Bernstein Estate; 
45. Gutter Chaves Josepher Rubin Forman Fleisher Miller PA F.K.A. Tescher Gutter 

Chaves Josepher Rubin Ruffin & Forman PA and  its current and former Divisions, 
Affiliates, Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, 
Assigns, Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, 
Administrators, Representatives, Attorneys, Insurers and Fiduciaries; 

46. Tescher & Spallina, P.A. and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives, 
Attorneys, Insurers and Fiduciaries; 

47. T&S Registered Agents, LLC and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, 
Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, 
Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, 
Representatives; 

48. Kimberly Francis Moran, personally; 
49. Kimberly Francis Moran, professionally; 
50. Lindsay Baxley aka Lindsay Giles, personally; 
51. Lindsay Baxley aka Lindsay Giles, professionally; 
52. Alan B. Rose, Esq. – personally; 
53. Alan B. Rose, Esq. – professionally; 
54. Page, Mrachek, Fitzgerald & Rose, P.A. and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, 

Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, 
Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, 
Representatives, Attorneys, Insurers and Fiduciaries; 

55. Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, 
Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, 
Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, 
Representatives, Attorneys, Insurers and Fiduciaries; 

56. Brian O’Connell, Esq., personally;  
57. Brian O’Connell, Esq., professionally; 
58. Brian O’Connell, Esq., fiduciary;  
59. Joielle "Joy" A. Foglietta, Esq., personally; 
60. Joielle "Joy" A. Foglietta Esq., professionally; 
61. Joielle "Joy" A. Foglietta Esq., fiduciary; 
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62. Albert Gortz, Esq., personally; 
63. Albert Gortz, Esq., professionally; 
64. Proskauer Rose, LLP and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 

Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives; 

65. Hopkins & Sutter and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives; 

66. Foley & Lardner LLP and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives; 

67. Greenberg Traurig, LLP and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives; 

68. Jon Swergold, Esq., personally; 
69. Jon Swergold, Esq., professionally; 
70. Gerald R. Lewin, CPA, personally; 
71. Gerald R. Lewin, CPA, professionally; 
72. CBIZ, Inc. (NYSE: CBZ) and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 

Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives; 

73. John Morrissey, Esq., personally; 
74. John Morrissey, Esq., professionally; 
75. John P. Morrissey, P.A. and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 

Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives; 

76. Mark R. Manceri, Esq., personally; 
77. Mark R. Manceri, Esq., professionally; 
78. Mark R. Manceri, Esq., P.A. and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, 

Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, 
Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, 
Representatives, Attorneys, Insurers and Fiduciaries; 

79. Pankauski Law Firm PLLC and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, 
Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, 
Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, 
Representatives, Attorneys, Insurers and Fiduciaries; 

80. John J. Pankauski, Esq., personally; 
81. John J. Pankauski, Esq., professionally; 
82. Steven A. Lessne, Esq., personally; 
83. Steven A. Lessne, Esq., professionally; 
84. GrayRobinson, P.A. and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 

Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives; 

85. GUNSTER and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, Stockholders, 
Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, Officers, 
Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives; 
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86. Brandan J. Pratt, Esq., personally; 
87. Brandan J. Pratt, Esq., professionally; 
88. Huth & Pratt  and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 

Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives, 
Attorneys, Insurers and Fiduciaries; 

89. Stanford Financial Group and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives, 
Attorneys, Insurers, Receivers and Fiduciaries; 

90. Oppenheimer & Co. Inc. and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives, 
Attorneys, Insurers and Fiduciaries; 

91. Oppenheimer Trust Company of Delaware and  its current and former Divisions, 
Affiliates, Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, 
Assigns, Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, 
Administrators, Representatives, Attorneys, Insurers and Fiduciaries; 

92. Janet Craig, personally; 
93. Janet Craig, professionally; 
94. Janet Craig, fiduciary; 
95. Huntington Worth, personally; 
96. Huntington Worth, professionally; 
97. Huntington Worth, fiduciary; 
98. William McCabe, Esq., personally; 
99. William McCabe, Esq., professionally; 
100. Legacy Bank of Florida and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 

Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives, 
Attorneys, Insurers and Fiduciaries; 

101. JP Morgan Chase & Co. and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives, 
Attorneys, Insurers and Fiduciaries; 

102. LaSalle National Trust, NA and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, 
Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, 
Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, 
Representatives; 

103. Chicago Title Land Trust and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives; 

104. Heritage Union Life and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives; 
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105. Jackson National Life and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives; 

106. Reassure America Life Insurance Company and  its current and former Divisions, 
Affiliates, Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, 
Assigns, Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, 
Administrators, Representatives; 

107. WiltonRe and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, Stockholders, 
Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, Officers, 
Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives; 

108. First Arlington National Bank as Trustee of S.B. Lexington, Inc. Employee Death 
Benefit Trust and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives; 

109. United Bank of Illinois and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives; 

110. Bank of America, Alleged successor in interest to LaSalle National Trust, N.A.  and  its 
current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, 
Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, 
Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives;  

111. Wilmington Trust Company and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, 
Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, 
Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, 
Representatives; 

112. Regency Title dba US Title of Florida and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, 
Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, 
Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, 
Representatives; 

113. Old Republic National Title Insurance Company and  its current and former Divisions, 
Affiliates, Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, 
Assigns, Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, 
Administrators, Representatives; 

114. Nestler Poletto Sotheby's International Realty and  its current and former Divisions, 
Affiliates, Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, 
Assigns, Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, 
Administrators, Representatives; 

115. Bernstein Family Realty, LLC and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, 
Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, 
Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, 
Representatives; 

116. Bernstein Holdings, LLC and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives; 

117. Bernstein Family Investments, LLLP and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, 
Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, 
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Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, 
Representatives; 

118. S.T.P. Enterprises, Inc., and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives, 
Attorneys, Insurers and Fiduciaries; 

119. S.B. Lexington, Inc. and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives; 

120. National Service Association, Inc. (of Illinois) and  its current and former Divisions, 
Affiliates, Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, 
Assigns, Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, 
Administrators, Representatives;  

121. Life Insurance Concepts, Inc. and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, 
Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, 
Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, 
Representatives; 

122. LIC Holdings, Inc. and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives; 

123. LIC Holdings, LLC and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives; 

124. Arbitrage International Management LLC and  its current and former Divisions, 
Affiliates, Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, 
Assigns, Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, 
Administrators, Representatives; 

125. Arbitrage International Marketing, Inc. and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, 
Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, 
Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, 
Representatives; 

126. Arbitrage International Holdings, LLC and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, 
Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, 
Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, 
Representatives; 

127. National Services Pension Plan and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, 
Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, 
Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, 
Representatives; 

128. Arbitrage International Marketing Inc. 401 (k) Plan and  its current and former 
Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors 
Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, 
Agents, Administrators, Representatives; 

129. Simon L. Bernstein Trust Agreement (2008) and its current and former trustees, 
fiduciaries and counsel; 
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130. Simon L. Bernstein Irrevocable Trust Agreement (2008) and its current and former 
trustees, fiduciaries and counsel; 

131. Simon L. Bernstein Estate and Will of Simon L. Bernstein (2008) and its current and 
former trustees, fiduciaries and counsel; 

132. Simon L. Bernstein Estate and Will of Simon L. Bernstein (2012) and its current and 
former trustees, fiduciaries and counsel; 

133. Simon L. Bernstein Amended and Restated Trust Agreement (2012) and its current and 
former trustees, fiduciaries and counsel; 

134. Wilmington Trust 088949-000 Simon L. Bernstein Irrevocable Trust and its current and 
former trustees, fiduciaries and counsel; 

135. Estate and Will of Shirley Bernstein (2008) and its current and former trustees, 
fiduciaries and counsel; 

136. Shirley Bernstein Trust Agreement (2008) and its current and former trustees, fiduciaries 
and counsel; 

137. Shirley Bernstein Irrevocable Trust Agreement (2008) and its current and former 
trustees, fiduciaries and counsel; 

138. Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust dated 6/21/1995 (currently missing and 
legally nonexistent) and its current and former trustees, fiduciaries and counsel; 

139. Shirley Bernstein Marital Trust and Family Trust created under the Shirley Bernstein 
Trust (2008) and its current and former trustees, fiduciaries and counsel; 

140. S.B. Lexington, Inc. 501(C)(9) VEBA TRUST and  its current and former Divisions, 
Affiliates, Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, 
Assigns, Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, 
Administrators, Representatives; 

141. Trust f/b/o Joshua Bernstein under the Simon L. Bernstein Trust dtd 9/13/2012 and its 
current and former trustees, fiduciaries and counsel;  

142. Trust f/b/o Daniel Bernstein under the Simon L. Bernstein Trust dtd 9/13/2012 and its 
current and former trustees, fiduciaries and counsel; 

143. Trust f/b/o Jake Bernstein under the Simon L. Bernstein Trust dtd 9/13/2012 and its 
current and former trustees, fiduciaries and counsel; 

144. Eliot Bernstein Family Trust dated May 20, 2008 and its current and former trustees, 
fiduciaries and counsel; 

145. Daniel Bernstein Irrevocable Trust dated September 7, 2006 and its current and former 
trustees, fiduciaries and counsel; 

146. Jake Bernstein Irrevocable Trust dated September 07, 2006 and its current and former 
trustees, fiduciaries and counsel; 

147. Joshua Z. Bernstein Irrevocable Trust dated September 07, 2006 and its current and 
former trustees, fiduciaries and counsel; 

148. Traci Kratish, Fiduciary; 
149. Christopher Prindle, personally; 
150. Christopher Prindle, professionally; 
151. Peter Montalbano, personally; 
152. Peter Montalbano, professionally; 
153. Steven Greenwald, personally; 
154. Steven Greenwald, professionally; 
155. Louis B. Fournet; professionally; 
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156. Louis B. Fourner, personally; 
157. Alexandra Bernstein; 
158. Michael Bernstein; 
159. Eric Bernstein; 
160. Molly Simon; 
161. Max Friedstein; 
162. John and Jane Doe State Defendants,  

 
EXHIBIT A - LIST OF POTENTIAL DEFENDANTS TO BE ADDED TO COUNTER 
COMPLAINT BASED ON NEED TO OBTAIN DISCOVERY AND POTENTIAL 
COMPANY - VEHICLE TO HIDE-MOVE ASSETS ETC  
 

163. John Hancock 
164. Delray Medical Center; 
165. Ronald V. Alvarez, Esquire, is a mediator; 
166. CFC of Delaware, LLC. 
167. Life Insurance Connection, Inc. 
168. TSB Holdings, LLC 
169. TSB Investments LLLP 
170. Life Insurance Concepts, LLC 
171. Life Insurance Innovations, Inc. 
172. National Service Association, Inc.  (of Florida)  
173. Total Brokerage Solutions LLC 
174. Cambridge Financing Company 
175. National Service Association, Inc. 
176. National Service Corp (FLORIDA)  
177. Simon L. Bernstein Irrevocable Trust U/A 9/7/06 
178. Shirley Bernstein Irrevocable Trust U/A 9/7/06  
179. Simon Bernstein 2000 Insurance Trust (dated august 15, 2000) 
180. Shirley Bernstein 2000 Insurance Trust (dated august 15, 2000)  
181. 2000 Last Will and Testament of Simon L. Bernstein 
182. 2000 Last Will and Testament of Shirley Bernstein 
183. Jill Iantoni Family Trust dated May 20, 2008 
184. Lisa Friedstein Family Trust dated May 20, 2008 
185. Daniel Bernstein Irrevocable Trust 07-JUL-10 049738 
186. Jake Bernstein Irrevocable Trust 07-JUL-10 0497381 
187. Joshua Z Bernstein Irrevocable Trust 07-JUL-10 0497381 
188. Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Trust dated 6/21/95 
189. Simon Bernstein Trust, NA  
190. S.B. Lexington, Inc. Employee Death Benefit Trust 
191. Simon Bernstein Trust Agreement dated May 13, 2008 
192. Saint Andrews School Boca Raton 
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911:
SUTCIDE * *
STGNAL CODE: 32 CRIME CODE: NON CRIME CODE: OT
ZONE: C21 ffiID: DEPUTY I.D.: 7571 NAI'18: PEREZ,
OCCURRED BES9IEEN DAIF-: O2/22/L5 , 22OO HOURS AND DATE:
EXCEPTION TYPE:
INCIDENT LOCATION: ?020 LIONS HEAD

CITY: BOCA RATON STATE: F].

Page 14 of 17

*
CODE: 9532 05/L3/16 TUESDAY
M. ASSIST: TIME D 1510 A 1629 C 0119
02/23/15 , 1730 HOURS

LA APT. 1i50. :

ztPz 33496

PALM BEACH COUNTY SHERIFE''S OE'FTCE PAGE 1

CASENO. L6O4246O SUPPLEMENT 4 OEFENSE REPORT CASENO. L6O4246O
DISPOSITIONi ZULV

DIVISION: DETECTIVE

NO. OFFENSES: 00 NO. OEAENDERS: UK NO. 1IEHICLES STOLEN: 0 NO. PRE}'fISES ENIERED:
LOCATION: RESIDENCE - SINe?.r FAI{IIY
NO. \IICTIMS: 00 NO. ARRESfED: 0 FORCED ENTRY: 0

ON MAY 24, 2076, AT APPROXIMATEIY 1830 HOI'RS I MET WITH TED BERNSTEIN
(WHI"E MAI.E, 08/27/1959' WIIO PROVIDED ME WITH A STATEMENT. THE FOLLOWING TS
A SYNOPSIS OF TEDIS STATEMENT. TED STATED THAT ON THE DAY OEMITCH'S DEATH
HE TEXTED MITCH SOMETIME BETWEEN 8:30 A.M. AND 9:00 A.M. IN REEERENCE ?O
SCHEDUI,ING A MEETING; HO},EVER/ MITCH DlD NOT RESPOND. TED STATED THAT AT
APPROXIMATELY 3:30 P.U. HE Gc|,f e CAI.L FB.OM DEBORAH AND SHE SOUNDED PANICKED.
TED STATED TIIAT DEBOR,AII MENTIONED THAT MITCH'S STUFF WAS HERE AND SHE HASNIT
HEARD FROM HIM. TED STATED THAT DEBORAH ASKED IF HE AND MITCH HAD MET, OR IF
TED KNEW OF'ANY MEETINGS AND TED RESPONDED NO.

TED STATED THAT A COUPLE OF HOI'RS I.ATER, PBSO CAITED AND ASKED HIM TO
COME TO THE HOUSE. ?ED STATED THAT HE ARRI\IED AT THE HOUSE A}ID LEARNED OF
MITCH I S DE-ATH. TED STATED TEAT DEBOR,AE SENT HIM A MESSAGE ASKTNG HIM TO STAY
AND HE WAITED FOR AAOUT 40 MTNUTES BEtr.ORE LE,AVING. TED STATED THAT SHORTIY
AT'TER ARRIVING HOME DEBOR,AIi CAILED HIM AND IIE RETURNED TO THE SCENE
ACCOMPANTED BY HIS WIFE. TED STATED THAT IIE DROI/E DEBORAH TO HIS HOUSE WHERE
SHE SPENT THE NIGHT.

?ED DESCRIBES DEBOR,AI{ AS BEING IN SHOCK AND BEING CONCERNED ABOUT
MITCE'S ],EGACY. TED S?ATED THAT DEBORAH DIDNIT IiANT PAOPT,E THAT KNEW HIM TO
FTND OUT TTIAT MITCH T@K HIS OWN LIFE. TED STATED TITAT DEBORAH MENTIONED
RECENTIX IIAVTNG A E'ACIAI I.ASER PEEL DONE WHICH HE BELIE\IED TO HAVE CAUSED AN
EXTREME REACTTON ON HER FACE. TED DESCRTBED IT AS LOOKTNG PAINF'I'T AND THAT
THAT I{AS TtrE ONLY MARKS TIIAT HE NOTICED ON DEBORAH. TED STATED THAT DEBORAH
STAYED AI IIIS HOME 3-4 DAYS AND DURING THAT TI}4E iIE BRIEELY },IET ONE OF
MITCH'S STSTERS, A BROTHER-IN-I,AII AND DEBORAH'S SON. TED STATED THAT HE
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DISPOSITION: ZIJLU

TRIED TO GM THEM PRMCY AND STAY OUT OE TEE liAY SO HE DOESN'T KNOI.I IF
THEY WERE ARGUING OR THE TOPICS OF THEIR CONVERSATIONS.

TED STATED T}IAT PRIOR TO THIS INCIDENT T8E I.AST TIME HE SPOKE TO
DEBORAH I{AS AROUND THE HOLIDAYS. TED STATED THAI PRIOR TO THE INCIDENT HE

SPOKE WITH MITCH ON THE MOI{DAY OR TI'ESDAY BEFORE AND THAT THEY TAIKED ABOUT
TEE EOUSE REMODEL/ THE MOLD AND INSURANCE ADJUSTERS. TED STATED TITAT THEY
AISO TAI,KED ABOUT MITCH NOT WANTING TO BE INCLUDED IN OITI.INE BLOGS AND MITCH
OFFERED TO EEIP TED I S ONLINE I}.4AGE.

TED STATED THAT HE HAS KNOWN MTTCH SINCE AUGUST OR SSPTEMBER THROUGH
EMAILS ABOUT THE HOUSE; HOWEVER/ THEY DIDNI? MEET T,NTI], OCTOBER. TED STATED
THAT AIL OE'TIIE CONVERSATIONS WERE IN REFERENCE TO THE HOUSE. TED STATED
THAT HE DID IOT }IOTICE ANY SIGNS OF MENTAI ILLNESS BUT THAT EE DID NOT KNOW

MITCH WELL ENOUGII TO NOTICE. TED STATED THAT THEY DID DEVELOP }, F'RIENDSHIP,
A!{D THAT HE REMEMBERS BEING IMPRESSED THAT MTTCH DID NOT BI^AME HIM I'OR THE
EXTENSIVE PROB],EMS IITTH THE HOUSE. TED STATED THAT MITCH AND HE !iOUI.D TAIK
2-3 TIMES A WEEK.

TED STATED THAT HE DTDN'T BELIEVE TI]AT HIS BROTHER ELLIOT KNEW MITCH'S
IDENTITY I'NTIL AFTER THE DEATH AND TTIAT UP TO THIS POINT MITCH HAD NOT BEEN
MENTIONED IN ET.T.IOT'S BLOC AND MITCH WAI{TED TO KEEP IT THAT WAY. TED STATED
THAT THIS IS THE REASON TEE I.AND TRUST I.{AS USED TO PURCHASE THE HOME.

TED STATED THAT HIS PARENTS IEFT ASSETS TO THEIR GRANDCHILDREN AND TITAT
HE DIDNIT STAIqD TO BENEFIT ANYITHING FB,OM THE PT'RCEASE. TED STATED THAT
BECAUSE OF HTS BROTHER ELLIOT/ TED USES A I.AWYER FOR EVERYTHING IN ORDER TO
PROTECT HIMSELF.

TED STATED THAT HE A}ID MITCH GOT TO KNOW E.ACH OTHER AND THAT MITCH
V{ANTED TO HELP HIS REPUTATION. TED STATED TIIAT MITCH THOUGHT GOING INTO
BUSINESS TOGETHER I{OI'LD HELP BUT THAT THEY NEYER SPOKE OF MONEY AFTER THE

CLOSING OF THE HOUSE.
TED STATED THAT MITCH DID NOT REACH OUT TO TED FOR HE],P AND THAT MITCH

DID NOT APPEAR TO BE DEPRESSED. TED DESCRIBED MITCH TO BE UPBEAT AND HE WAS

NO DIFEERENT TWO DAYS BEEORE.
THIS CONCLIJDED TED'S STATEMENT.
ON },IAY 25TH AT APPROXII'IATEIY 15OO HOI'RS I MET TTTIT MTCEAEL A].TSHI'LER

(taHrTE D4ArE, 10/11/1956). MTCEAET. PROVTDED ME WrTg A S!iORN STATEMEN? WHrCH
I.IAS MEIiTORIALIZED ON A DIGITAL RECORDING DEVICE, THE EOLIJOWING IS A SYNOPSIS
OE MICEAELIS STATEMENT/ FOR SPECIFIC DETAITS PLEASE RET'ER TO THE CD LOCATED
IN PBSO EVIDENCE. MICHAEL STATED THAT ON THE DAY OE' MITCIIIS DEATH HE WAS

SUPPOSED TO }TEET WITH MITCH AT THE GYM INSIDE OF MITCH'S DEVEIOPMENT.
MICHAEl STATED IIIAT HE ARRMD AT THE COMMUNITY GYM ARoUND 7:00 P.M. AND
EHAT THIS HAD BEE}iI PI.ANNED SEVERAI. DAYS IN ADVANCE. MICIIAEI SIITED TEAT HE
MET MITCH AT A SEMINAR AND THAT THEY HAVE KNOWN EACH OTHER FOR 3-4 MONTHS.
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                               PAGES:     1-165

                               EXHIBITS:  1-15, A

    IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE FIFTEENTH JUDICIAL

    CIRCUIT IN AND FOR PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA

                     NO. 502012CP004391XXXXSB

                     CP - Probate

_______________________________

IN RE:                         )

ESTATE OF SIMON L. BERNSTEIN   )

_______________________________)

                 TELEPHONIC DEPOSITION of DONALD R.

TESCHER, called as a witness by and on behalf of

Ted S. Bernstein, pursuant to the applicable

provisions of the Florida Rules of Civil Procedure,

before P. Jodi Ohnemus, RPR, RMR, CRR, CA-CSR

#13192, NH-LCR #91, MA-CSR #123193, and Notary

Public, within and for the Commonwealth of

Massachusetts, at the Hampton Inn & Suites, 10

Plaza Way, Plymouth, Massachusetts, on Wednesday, 9

July, 2014, commencing at 2:38 p.m.
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1 nor did Mr. Spallina bring it to the attention of

2 anybody; is that --

3     A.   We couldn't, because we weren't aware of

4 it.

5     Q.   Okay.  And when you became aware of it in

6 2013, did you think it appropriate at that time to

7 resign as copersonal representative from the estate

8 of Simon Bernstein?

9     A.   No.

10     Q.   Now, did there come a time, however, when

11 you did resign -- you and Mr. Spallina -- as

12 copersonal representatives of the Simon Bernstein

13 estate; correct?

14     A.   That is correct.

15     Q.   Do you recall when that was?

16     A.   January of 2014.

17     Q.   And what was the incident at that time

18 that then caused you to resign as copersonal

19 representatives of the estate of Simon Bernstein?

20     A.   It came to light -- it was brought to my

21 attention that the -- there was an amendment --

22 there was an altered document altering the

23 amendment to Shirley Bernstein's revocable trust,

24 which document had been forwarded to Christine

25 Yates, who was then serving as counsel to Eliot
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1 Bernstein's children; and that document added a

2 provision.

3     Q.   All right.  And how did that document come

4 to light -- the altered document?

5     A.   It was brought to my attention by someone

6 in my office.

7     Q.   Okay.  Now, the -- you identified the

8 altered document as what again -- the Shirley

9 Bernstein Trust?

10     A.   The Amendment to Shirley Bernstein's

11 Revocable Trust Agreement.

12     Q.   Okay.  And who in your office brought that

13 to your attention?

14     A.   Our associate.

15     Q.   And who is that?

16     A.   Lauren Galvani.

17     Q.   And when did that take place?

18     A.   January 2013.

19     Q.   Okay.  And there is a document that's

20 attached to your affidavit, which is the -- I

21 believe an amendment to the Shirley Bernstein

22 Trust; is that correct?

23     A.   Hold on one moment.  Let me get to that.

24     Q.   Is that Exhibit C?

25     A.   I believe that's C, if I'm not mistaken.
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1 Hold on one moment.

2          (Witness reviews document.)  Yeah.  That's

3 Exhibit C.

4     Q.   Okay.  All right.

5          Now, Exhibit C, is that the altered

6 document or the unaltered document?

7     A.   That is the unaltered document.

8     Q.   And what did the altered first amendment

9 to the Shirley Bernstein trust say?

10     A.   I don't have it in front of me, but

11 essentially what it did was there was a -- you see

12 how it's numbered now 1 and 3?  There were -- you

13 know, somebody had messed up when it had been

14 originally prepared, and it got numbered --

15 paragraph No. 1, paragraph No. 3.

16          A paragraph No. 2 was inserted between 1

17 and 3.

18     Q.   And when did that take place?

19     A.   I don't know.

20     Q.   Was it -- did it take place sometime in

21 2012?

22     A.   I don't know.

23     Q.   Did it take -- well, how did your

24 associate suddenly come across it in January of

25 2014?

BATES NO. EIB 000867 
02/27/2017



1-888-311-4240

WWW.USLEGALSUPPORT.COM

55

1     A.   You'll have to ask her.

2     Q.   Did you ever ask her how she came across

3 it that then subsequently caused you to resign as

4 copersonal representative?

5     A.   She noticed that the amendment that had

6 been included in the letter to Christine Yates was

7 different than Exhibit -- the exhibit that's here

8 attached to my affidavit.

9     Q.   And in that letter to Christine Yates,

10 what was the date of that letter?

11     A.   I think it was January of 2013 -- I think.

12     Q.   Okay.  And so that was after the death of

13 Simon Bernstein; correct?

14     A.   Yes, it was.

15     Q.   So then that altered document contained in

16 a document dated January 11, 2013 could very well

17 have been prepared while Ted Bernstein was the

18 successor personal representative and successor

19 trustee to the Shirley Bernstein estate and trust;

20 correct?

21     A.   No.  Probably -- well...

22          Probably -- I'm not sure, to be honest,

23 Peter.  I'm not a hundred percent certain on the

24 timing.

25     Q.   Okay.  And how did a year go by between
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1 the time of the January 11th, 2013 letter in which

2 the altered document was produced to the attorneys

3 for Eliot Bernstein and then the discovery that it

4 was, in fact, an altered document?  What happened

5 in that 12-month time that caused you, or your

6 associate, or your office to discover that, in

7 fact, what had been supplied to counsel for Eliot

8 Bernstein was, in fact, a forged document or

9 altered document?

10     A.   I can't answer that question, actually --

11 'cause I don't know.

12     Q.   All right.  And -- and who in your firm

13 would be in the best position to know that -- if

14 it's not the general manager -- the managing

15 partner of the firm?

16     A.   Mr. Spallina or Ms. Galvani.

17     Q.   You were the managing partner at that time

18 still; correct?

19     A.   I was the president.

20     Q.   Okay.  And what did the altered document

21 say in paragraph 2?

22     A.   I told you that I don't have that in front

23 of me.

24     Q.   And the one attached to your affidavit?

25     A.   I told you that I don't have that in front
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1 of me.

2     Q.   I apologize if I'm being repetitive on

3 that score.

4     A.   Yeah, I don't have --

5     Q.   Your best recollection.

6     A.   Yeah.  Peter, I don't have it here.

7          It dealt with the definition of children

8 and lineals.

9          MR. ROSE:  Peter, I don't want to ruin

10 your momentum that you're building up, but I need

11 to take a bathroom break.  Could we take -- we've

12 been going at it for a little more than an hour.

13 Can we take like a five-minute break?

14          MR. FEAMAN:  Sure.  I'm moving on to the

15 next item anyway.

16          MR. ROSE:  No more than five -- maybe as

17 little as two minutes.  I'll be right back.

18          MR. FEAMAN:  No problem.

19          (Recess was taken.)

20     Q.   Mr. Tescher, I'd like you to take a look

21 at what's been premarked as Exhibit 3.

22          MR. FEAMAN:  Madam Court Reporter, would

23 you hand that to the witness.

24          COURT REPORTER:  Okay.

25          MR. FEAMAN:  Thank you.
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IN nm UNITBD STATBS DISTB.ICI' COURT 
POll THB DJSTRICT OP NBW J.BRSBY 

SECUJUTIBS AND BXCHANGB COMMISSION, 

Plaintiff; 

v. 

~BER.TL. SPALLINA. et al, 

CONSENT OF DBRNDANT ROBERT L SPALLINA 

J. Dofmdant lt.obort L Spallina ("Dofondant') waivea service of a summona aJid tho 

complah.lt in this action, onten a pneral appearanco, and admits tho Comt•a jmiacliction over 

l>Ofondant and over the subject matter of this action. 

2.. Dofcndant 1lal &peed to plead guilty to crimmal conduct re1adJ2g to certain 

} matters alleged In the eomplaint it> this action and acbowledgea that his conduct violated the 

federal securities law& Speciti~y, Defendant has aarecd to plead guilty to a one count 

informatiOD which charges him with committiq securitios fraud involvina insider trading in tho 

aooaritioa of Pharmasset. lno. in a matter to be filed in tho United States District Court to1 tho 

District of New Jeney.(tbe ''CrimJnal Action"). 

3. Defendant .horoby co~ts to tbe entry of tho Pinal Judgment in the form attached 

hereto (the "Pinal Judgment') and incolpOtlted by refenmco herein, which, among other things: 

(a) J>ermanentty restrains and eqjoina Deteodant Jiom violation of Secdom 

· lO(b) mid 14(o) of the Securities Bxchinp Act.of 1934 C'Bxchango Act") 

, 
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[15 U.S.~. §I 78j(b) and 7~n(o)] and Rules lOb-S and 14c>l thereunder 

[17 C.P.R. §§ 240.tOb-S md 240.14e-3); 

(b) orders Dofendant to pay disgorpmeat in the amount of$39,156, plus 

prejudgment interest dJoreoa in the amount of Sl,794; provided, however, 

• that $39,1545 shall be deemed sadafled in 1igbt of Defendant's conaont to 

tho entry of a bfoitare money judgment in the amount of $39,156 iD . 

cmmeodon with the Criminal Aationt and 

(c) otdors Ddmdaat to pay a ctvil penalty in tho amount of $39,156 under 

Seodon 21A of die Bxchanp Act [IS U.S.C. § 78u-1]. 

4. Defondant agrees that ho ahall not seek or accept,.~ or indirecdy, 
. 

ceimbutlemeDt or indcnmitl<Jation &om any SOUl'cet includina but not limited to payment made 

pursuant to any insunmQe policy, with regard to any cM1 penalty amounts that Dofcndant pays 

pursuant to the Pinal 1uclpient, rlpdel8 of whotbar such penalty 8IJlOUDia or ay put thereof 

ans added to a diatribution but or odaonrise used for the bone& of investors. Defendant tbrther 

agrees that he shall not claim, assert, or apply for a tax deduction or tax credit with regard to _any 

fedenJ, state, or IOOld tax for any penalty amounts that Dcfendmt pays pursuant U> the Final 

Judgment, regardless of whedler such penalty amounts or any part thereof aro added to a 

distribution fimd or odterwise used for tbe benefit of inveaton. 

S. Dofondanl waives the entry of ftndinp of fact and conclusiona of law pursuant to 

.Rulo 52 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.. 

6. Dofondant waivca the right. if any, to a jury trial and to appeal ftom the entry of 

the PJnal 1udplmt. 

2 
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. . 
7. Defendant enters into this Consent vohmtarily and represents that no tbreotB, 

.• 
of:fen, promisea. or induOOJDelda of any kind have been made by the Commission or any 

mombor, offtoer, employee, •• or representative of tho Commiasion to induce Defendant to 

enter {Dto this Consent. 

8. Dofeadant agrees that this Consent shall bo incorpomt.ed into the F~ J'vdgmcmt 

with· tho aame fcm:e and ctrect aa Jf fblly set forth therein. 

9. Defandant will D0t oppo80 tho enforcement of tho Pinal Judgment OD fho p.xmd, 

·if my exists, that it tails to comply with llule 6S(d) of the Pederal ltules of Civil Proceduro, and . 

ltenby waivel any objection baaed tbm:on. 

10. Dofondant waives aervico of the Pinal Judgment and aamcs that entry of tho Pinal 

ludgment by tho Coult and~ with the aert of tho Comt will constitute notice to Defendant 

of ita teaaa and conditions. Dofendant i\uther aareea to provide counael tor the Commiuion, 

within tbirr.y da11 after the Pinal ludgmODt fa filed witll the Clerk of the Court, with an atndavit 

or declaration stating that Defendant bu recoived ~read a copy of the Pinal Judgment. 

11. Consistmt with 17 c.F.R. I 202.5(1), thfs Consent resolves only the claims 

asserted against Defendant fn this civil proceedfng. Defendant acknowledges that no promise or 

representation has been made by the Commission or any mmnber, o~cer, employee, agent, or 

representative oftbo CommissJon with mprd to any oriminal liability that may haw er.inn or 
• • t 

may arlae ftom the factl underlying tbJ.a action or immunity ftom any such criminal liability. 

Defendant waives any claim of Double Jeopardy bued upo~ the settlement of this pmceeding, 

including tho imposition of any remedy or civil penalty herein. Dofendant Jbrther acknowledges 

that the Court's entry of a ~ent ID;unctioa may have collateral conaequencea under federal 

or state law and ihe rules and regulations of self.regulatory organizadons, Ucensing boards, and 
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other regulatory orpnindons. Such collateral consequences include, but aro not limited to, a 

. slatufOl'y disqualificadon with respect to membership or participation in, or aasociadon wi1h a 

member o~ a~~ Tlda statutory diaqualiftoation baa consequencea that 

are soparate from any aancdon imposed in ID~ pmceedlng. In addition, in any 

discJplfnary proceeding before the Commission baaed on tho entl)' of the injunction in this 

action, Defendant undonbm.da that ho abal1 not bo ponniued to contest the factual allejationa of 

the complaint ill tbia action. 

12. Defendant understands and apees to comply with tho tenm of 17 C.P.R. 

f 202,S(e). whlcb provides in part that it ia tho Commisaion'a poliO)' ''nc>t to permit a dofendaat 

or respolideDt to consent to a judgment or older that impose8 a sanction while denyins the . ' 

aJleptiom in the complaint or OJder for pmc:eedlnp." Aa part of Defendant's agreemant to 

comply with tho klm8 of Section 2015(0), Dofendaat acknowledges that bo has aJD*I to plead 

gufhy tor rolatec1 conduct as deacribcd in paragraph 2 above, and: (i) will not tab any action or 

make or permit to be made any pablio statement denying directly or indirectly, any allegation in 

~e complamt or creating the impieaslon that the complaint la without W basis; (If) will not 

maim or permit to be made any pubHc statement to tho effect that Defendant does not admit tho 

al1epd.ona of the complaint, or that this Conseat contains no admission of the allepticms; (iii) 

upon the filing of tbia Consent. Defendant hereby withdraws any papers filed in this action to tbe 

extent that they dmy ~Y aDeption in the complaint; aud (iv) sdpul,iea for putpOaOS of 

aceptiona to diacbarge sot forth in Section 523 of the Bantrvptcy Code, 11 U.S.C.. §523. that the 

allegations in the complahlt are true. and ibrtbo.r, that any dobt tor diagorgement. prejudgsnent 

intoreat, civil penalty or other amounts duo by Defendant under the Final Judgment or any other 

judgment, order, consent order, decree or aottJeaDent agreement entered in connection with this 

4 
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proceeding, ia a debt tbr the violation by Defendant of tho federal securities laws or any 

regulation or order issued under IUCb laws, aa sct forth in Section S23(aX19) of the Bankruptcy 

Code, 11 u.s.c. tS23(aX19). Jf Defondant broaches 1hil asreememt, the Commisaion may 
petition the Court to vacate the Pinal Judgment and reatoro tblt action to 111 active cfoclcot. 

Nothilig in tbia paragraph affocti Dofe.adant'r. (i) testimonial obliptlona; or (H) tight to take 

lept or factual positions in litiption or other lesal proceedings in which the Commission ia not 

apady. 

13. . Dofendant hereby wafvea any righta under tho Bqua1 Accoaa to Justice Act, 1ho 

SmaD BUlhtesa Regulatory Bnfomement Faimeaa Act of 1996, or any other provision Of Jaw to 

uek tiom the United Statea, or·any agency, or any oftloial of tho United States acdng Jn his or 

· her oftlcial capacity, dlrecdy or indirectly, reimbursement of attomof s fees or other fees, 

oxpenses, or coats expanded by Dofondant to defend allafnst tlda acdon. Por tbcmo pUq>oaes, . 

Ddmdant agnea that Ddmdant ii not the prevailing party ill thl8 action sinco the parties have 

reached a good faith settlement. 

14. Jn connection with this action and any related judicial or administrative 

pmceeding ot Jnvesdpdon commonced by the Commlaafon or to which the Commission is a 

party, Defendant (i) agnea to appear and be il1teniewed by Commission staff at such dmea and 

pllcoa as tllo atatr requeata upon reasonable noticoi (ll) will accept service by mail or filcsimilo 

uanamiaaion of noticee or nbpoenu iaaued by the Commiaaion for dooumeata or toadmony at 

depoaidoDa, heulnp, or trials. or In cmmoodon with any related investigation by Coinmi.,.tcm 

~ (Jii) appoim Dofendant'a undendped attorney as. apnt to receive service of such notices 

and subpoenas; (iv) with respect to such nodces and aubpoo.ou, waives the terri~ limits on 

service contained in Rule 45 of the Federal Rules of Civil Pro_ceduro and any a}iplicable tOcal 
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rules, j>rovided chat the party requesdng the testimony reimburses Defendant's travel, lodgina, and 

subsisteacO egpeasoa at the then-provailing U.S. Govemment per diem rates;·anct (v) conacmta to · 

peraonaljurisdiction over Defendant ia any United States Diatrict Couri for'pmpoaes of 

· enforolng any noh ~ 

15. Defendant agrees that the Commission may present the Pinal J'udgment ·to the 

Comt for aipatuN and entzy without Auther notico. 

16. Defendant agrees chat tbi8 Court ahall retain jurisdiction over this matter for tho 
I 

puq>ose of enforcing the terms of the Pinal Judgment. 

Approved II to form: 

~~ Gibbobs ... 
One Gateway Center 
Newark, NJ 07102-5310 
Counsel for Robert L Spallina 

~CQ~ 
· Commiaion expim: 

Q) Alexa Collevecldo .... ' ..... .......... 
WIWMDllOTAIY.001 
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY 

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

ROBERT L. SP ALLINA, et al., 

Defendants. 

FINAL JUDGMENT AS TO DEFENDANT ROBERT L. SPALLINA 

The Securities and Exchange Commission having filed a Complaint and Defendant 

Robert L. Spallina having entered a general appearance; consented to the Court's jurisdiction 

over Defendant and the subject matter of this action; consented to entry of this Final Judgment; 

waived findings of fact and conclusions of law; waived any right to appeal from this Final 

Judgment; and Defendant having admitted the facts set forth in the Consent of Robert L. Spallina 

and acknowledged that his conduct violated the federal securities laws: 

I. 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant and 

Defendant's agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and all persons in active concert or 

participation with them who receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or 

otherwise are permanently restrained and enjoined from violating, directly or indirectly, Section 

lO(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act") [15 U.S.C. § 78j(b)] and 

Rule 1 Ob-5 promulgated thereunder [ 17 C.F .R. § 240.1 Ob-5], by using any means or 
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instrumentality of interstate commerce, or of the mails, or of any facility of any national 

securities exchange, in connection with the purchase or sale of any security: 

(a) to employ any device, scheme, or artifice to defraud; 

(b) to make any untrue statement of a material fact or to omit to state a material fact 

necessary in order to make the statements made, in the light of the circUinStances 

under which they were made, not misleading; or 

(c) to engage in any act, practice, or course of business which operates or would 

operate as a fraud or deceit upon any person. 

II. 

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant 

and Defendant's agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and all persons in active concert or 

participation with them who receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or 

otherwise are permanently restrained and enjoined from violating Section 14( e) of the Exchange 

Act [15 U.S.C. § 78n(e)] and Rule 14e-3 [17 C.F.R. § 240.14e-3] promulgated thereunder, in 

connection with any tender offer or request or invitation for tenders, from engaging in any 

fraudulent, deceptive, or manipulative act or practice, by: 

(a) purchasing or selling or causing to be purchased or sold the securities 

sought or to be sought in such tender offer, securities convertible into or 

exchangeable for any such securities or any option or right to obtain or 

dispose of any of the foregoing securities while m possession of material 

information relating to such tender offer that Defendant knows or has 

reason to know is nonpublic and knows or has reason to know has been 

2 
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acquired directly or indirectly from the offering person; the issuer of the 

securities sought or to be sought by such tender offer; or any officer, 

director, partner, employee or other person acting on behalf of the offering 

person or such issuer, unless within a reasonable time prior to any such 

purchase or sale such information and its source are publicly disclosed by 

press release or otherwise; or 

(b) communicating material, nonpublic information relating to a tender offer, 

which Defendant knows or has reason to know is nonpublic and knows or 

has reason to know has been acquired directly or indirectly from the 

offering person; the issuer of the securities sought or to be sought by such 

tender offer; or any officer, director, partner, employee, advisor, or other 

person acting on behalf of the offering person of such issuer, to any person 

under circumstances in which it is reasonably foreseeable that such 

communication is likely to result in the purchase or sale of securities in the 

manner described in subparagraph (a) above, except that this paragraph 

shall not apply to a communication made in good faith 

(i) to the officers, directors, partners or employees of the 

offering person, to its advisors or to other persons, involved 

in the planning, financing, preparation or execution of such 

tender off er; 

(ii) to the issuer whose securities are sought or to be sought by 

such tender offer, to its officers, directors, partners, 

employees or advisors or to other persons involved in the 

3 
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planning, financing, preparation or execution of the 

activities of the issuer with respect to such tender offer; or 

(iii) to any person pursuant to a requirement of any statute or 

rule or regulation promulgated thereunder. 

III. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant is liable 

for disgorgement of$39,156, representing profits gained as a result of the conduct alleged in the 

Complaint, together with prejudgment interest thereon in the amount of $1, 794; provided, 

however, that $39,156 shall be deemed satisfied in light of Defendant's consent to the entry of a 

forfeiture money judgment in the amount of $39, 156 in connection with the resolution of a 

parallel criminal action instituted in this Court; and a civil penalty in the amount of $39,156 

pursuant to Section 21A of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78u-1]. Defendant shall satisfy this 

obligation by paying $40,950 to the Securities and Exchange Commission within 14 days after 

entry of this Final Judgment. 

Defendant may transmit payment electronically to the Commission, which will provide 

detailed ACH transfer/F edwire instructions upon request. Payment may also be made directly 

from a bank account via Pay.gov through the SEC website at 

http://www.sec.gov/about/offices/ofm.htm. Defendant may also pay by certified check, bank 

cashier's check, or United States postal money order payable to the Securities and Exchange 

Commission, which shall be delivered or mailed to 

Enterprise Services Center 
Accounts Receivable Branch 
6500 South MacArthur Boulevard 
Oklahoma City, OK 73169 

4 
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and shall be accompanied by a letter identifying the case title, civil action number, and name of 

this Court; Robert L. Spallina as a defendant in this action; and specifying that payment is made 

pursuant to this Final Judgment. 

Defendant shall simultaneously transmit photocopies of evidence of payment and case 

identifying information to the Commission's counsel in this action. By making this payment, 

Defendant relinquishes all legal and equitable right, title, and interest in such funds and no part 

of the funds shall be returned to Defendant. The Commission shall send the funds paid pursuant 

to this Final Judgment to the United States Treasury. 

The Commission may enforce the Court's judgment for disgorgement and prejudgment 

interest by moving for civil contempt (and/or through other collection procedures authorized by 

law) at any time after 14 days following entry of this Final Judgment. Defendant shall pay post 

judgment interest on any delinquent amounts pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1961. 

N. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that the Consent is 

incorporated herein with the same force and effect as if fully set forth herein, and that Defendant 

shall comply with all of the undertakings and agreements set forth therein. 

v. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, for purposes of 

exceptions to discharge set forth in Section 523 of the Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. § 523, the 

allegations in the Complaint are true and admitted by Defendant, and further, any debt for 

disgorgement, prejudgment interest, civil penalty or other amounts due by Defendant under this 

5 
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Final Judgment or any other judgment, order, consent order, decree or settlement agreement 

entered in connection with this proceeding, is a debt for the violation by Defendant of the federal 

securities laws or any regulation or order issued under such laws, as set forth in Section 

523(a)(l9) of the Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. § 523(a){l9). 

VI. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that this Court shall retain 

jurisdiction of this matter for the purposes of enforcing the terms of this Final Judgment. 

VII. 

There being no just reason for delay, pursuant to Rule 54(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil 

Procedure, the Clerk is ordered to enter this Final Judgment forthwith and without further notice. 

6 

Case 3:15-cv-07118-AET-LHG   Document 12   Filed 10/01/15   Page 12 of 18 PageID: 216

BATES NO. EIB 000886 
02/27/2017



Case3:15-cv-07118-AET-LHG Document3-1 Filed 09/28/15 Page 1 of6 PagelD: 41 

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY 

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

ROBERT L. SP ALLINA, et al., 

Defendants. 

FINAL JUDGMENT AS TO DEFENDANT ROBERT L. SP ALLINA 

The Securities and Exchange Commission having filed a Complaint and Defendant 

Robert L. Spallina having entered a general appearance; consented to the Court's jurisdiction 

over Defendant and the subject matter of this action; consented to entry of this Final Judgment; 

waived findings of fact and conclusions of law; waived any right to appeal from this Final 

Judgment; and Defendant having admitted the facts set forth in the Consent of Robert L. Spallina 

and acknowledged that his conduct violated the federal securities laws: 

I. 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant and 

Defendant's agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and all persons in active concert or 

participation with them who receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or 

otherwise are pennanently restrained and enjoined from violating, directly or indirectly, Section 

IO(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act") [15 U.S.C. § 78j(b)] and 

Rule 1 Ob-5 promulgated thereunder [ 17 C.F .R. § 240.1 Ob-5], by using any means or 
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instrumentality of interstate commerce, or of the mails, or of any facility of any national 

securities exchange, in connection with the purchase or sale of any security: 

(a) to employ any device, scheme, or artifice to defraud; 

(b) to make any untrue statement of a material fact or to omit to state a material fact 

necessary in order to make the statements made, in the light of the circumstances 

under which they were made, not misleading; or 

( c) to engage in any act, practice, or course of business which operates or would 

operate as a fraud or deceit upon any person. 

II. 

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant 

and Defendant's agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and all persons in active concert.or 

participation with them who receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or 

otherwise are permanently restrained and enjoined from violating Section 14(e) of the Exchange 

Act [15 U.S.C. § 78n(e)] and Rule 14e-3 [17 C.F .. R. § 240.14e-3] promulgated thereunder, in 

connection with any tender offer or request or invitation for tenders, from engaging in any 

fraudulent, deceptive, or manipulative act or practice, by: 

(a) purchasing or selling or causing to be purchased or sold the securities 

sought or to be sought in such tender offer, securities convertible into or 

exchangeable for any such securities or any option or right to obtain or 

dispose of any of the foregoing securities while in possession of material 

information relating to such tender offer that Defendant knows or has 

reason to know is nonpublic and knows or has reason to kn.ow has been 

2 
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acquired directly or indirectly from the offering person; the issuer of the 

securities sought or to be sought by such tender offer; or any officer, 

director, partner, employee or other person acting on behalf of the offering 

person or such issuer, unless within a reasonable time prior to any such 

purchase or sale such information and its source are publicly disclosed by 

press release or otherwise; or 

(b) communicating material, nonpublic information relating to a tender offer, 

which Defendant knows or has reason to know is nonpublic and knows or 

has reason to know has been acquired directly or indirectly from the 

offering person; the issuer of the securities sought or to be sought by such 

tender offer; or any officer, director, partner, employee, advisor, or other 

person acting on behalf of the offering person of such issuer, to any person 

under circumstances in which it is reasonably foreseeable that such 

communication is likely to result in the purchase or sale of securities in the 

manner described in subparagraph (a) above, except that this paragraph 

shall not apply to a communication made in good faith 

(i) to the officers, directors, partners or employees of the 

offering person, to its advisors or to other persons, involved 

in the planning, financing, preparation or execution of such 

tender offer; 

(ii) to the issuer whose securities are sought or to be sought by 

such tender offer, to its officers, directors, partners, 

employees or advisors or to other persons involved in the 

3 
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planning, financing, preparation or execution of the 

activities of the issuer with respect to such tender offer; or 

(iii) to any person pursuant to a requirement of any statute or 

rule or regulation promulgated thereunder. 

III. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant is liable 

for disgorgement of$39,156, representing profits gained as a result of the conduct alleged in the 

Complaint, together with prejudgment interest thereon in the amount of $1, 794; provided, 

however, that $39,156 shall be deemed satisfied in light of Defendant's consent to the entry of a 

forfeiture money judgment in the amount of$39,156 in connection with the resolution of a 

parallel criminal action instituted in this Court; and a civil penalty in the amount of $39,156 

pursuant to Section 21A of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78u-1]. Defendant shall satisfy this 

obligation by paying $40,950 to the Securities a.nd Exchange Commission within 14 days after 

entry of this Final Judgment. 

Defendant may transmit payment electronically to the Commission, which will provide 

detailed ACH transfer/F edwire instructions upon request. Payment may also be made directly 

from a bank account via Pay.gov through the SEC website at 

http://www.sec.gov/about/offices/ofm.htm. Defendant may also pay by certified check, bank 

cashier's check, or United States postal money order payable to the Securities a.nd Exchange 

Commission, which shall be delivered or mailed to 

Enterprise Services Center 
Accounts Receivable Branch 
6500 South MacArthur Boulevard 
Oklahoma City, OK 73169 

4 
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and shall be accompanied by a letter identifying the case title, civil action number, and name of 

this Court; Robert L. Spallina as a defendant in this action; and specifying that paymentis made 

pursuant to this Final Judgment. 

Defendant shall simultaneously transmit photocopies of evidence of payment and case 

identifying information to the Commission's counsel in this action. By making this payment, 

Defendant relinquishes all legal and equitable right, title, and interest in such funds and no part 

of the funds shall be returned to Defendant. The Commission shall send the funds paid pursuant 

to this Final Judgment to the United States Treasury. 

The Commission may enforce the Court's judgment for disgorgement and prejudgment 

interest by moving for civil contempt (and/or through other collection procedures authorized by 

law) at any time after 14 days following entry of this Final Judgment. Defendant shall pay post 

judgment interest on any delinquent amounts pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1961. 

IV. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that the Consent is 

incorporated herein with the same force and effect as if fully set forth herein, and that Defendant 

shall comply with all of the undertakings and agreements set forth therein. 

v. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, for purposes of 

exceptions to discharge set forth in Section 523 of the Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. § 523, the 

allegations in the Complaint are true and admitted by Defendant, and further, any debt for 

disgorgement, prejudgment interest, civil penalty or other amounts due by Defendant under this 

5 
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Final Judgment or any other judgment, order, consent order, decree or settlement agreement 

entered in connection with this proceeding, is a debt for the violation by Defendant of the federal 

securities laws or any regulation or order issued under such laws, as set forth in Section 

523(a)(19) of the Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. § 523(a)(19). 

VI. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that this Court shall retain 

jurisdiction of this matter for the purposes of enforcing the terms of this Final Judgment. 

VII. 

There being no just reason for delay, pursuant to Rule 54(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil 

Procedure, the Clerk is ordered to enter this Final Judgment forthwith and without further notice. 

6 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT CO~T 
·DISTRICT OF NBW JBRSBlj 

SBCURITJBS AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION, 

· Plaintiff, 
C.A.·No. _._ 

v. 
1· • 

DONAW R. TBSCHBR. et al, 

. ..1 

·CONS~ OJ' DEFENDANT DONALD.IL TE~ 

· 1. Defendant Donald R. Tescher ("Defendant") waives service of a summons aDd . 

,: 

herein in paragraph ·12 and. except as to~ and subject matter jlJdsdiction, which 

Defendant admits), Defendant hereby eonsents to the emry of the final Judgment in the fomi 
II " . .r 
• • .. ~ • + 

attached hereto (the "Fmal J~eat") and incorporated~ refinnce henDn. which, among other 

(a) 
' . 

tO(b) and 14(e) of die Securities ~change Mt of 1934 ("Rxchange Act'? .. · 
.. 

[lS U.S.C. §§ 78j(b) and 78n{e)] and Rules 101>-S ind 14&-3 tbereunder 

[17 C.F.R:. ·-§ 240.lOb-S and.240.14e-3); 

(b) · orders DefeDdapt to pay disgorpment in the amount of $9,937, plus · 

prejudgment interest thereon in the amount of $690; and 

1. 
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. , 

(c) orders De~ to pay a civil penalty in 1he amount of $9,937 under · 
. . 

Section 21A oftbe Exchange Act [IS U.S.C. § 78u-1]. 
. " 

3. Defendant agrees that he shall not~ or accept, dii'ectly or indirectly, 

reimbqrsemmt or jndemnJficatioo from any source, includhig but not limited to payment made . . 

pursuant to any insurance policy, with regard to any civil penalty amounts that Defimdant pays 

pursuant to the Final Judgment. regardless of whether such penalty amounts or any part thereo~ 

are added to a ctistributicm fund or otherwise used for the benefit of investon. · DefeDdant fbrther 

agrees that be shall not claim, assert, or apply for a tax deduction or tax ciectit with regard to apay 

·federal, stale, or local tax for any penalty .amo~ that Defendant pays pursuant. to the Final 
, < 

·.Judplent, ~ess of wbetber·sUch penalty amOUDts ~any part thereof are added to a 

dimibUti~ fund or otherwise used for.the benefit of investors.. 

4. Defendant ~tectP that the Court is not imposing a ci~ penalty in excess 

· ofS9,937 based on DefeQdant's cooperation in a Commi•on inwsdgation and/or mated 
~. ' • •· ·. ' •· • ......... ;,,,. a ' ' •"· '- '. ·•· .. ' • • ' ... · •... • • ' ' "'-' • • • • • ' ,., • • , .. • ·• ' • • . .; ,,;, ;, ; ' -~• ' ,., "" ' •. ,.., •• ' ,., • 

~action. ~ consems that if at an)' ame followina the eJltr)' of the irma1 
~ . (• . . 

Judpient ~ Commiaion obtains intomuttion indicatiq that Defendant knowinalJ JJl1;Mded 

materially false or mislead~ infonnation or materials to the Commission or in a related 
. . . 

Pmceectina. the Commission may, at its sole ~on ana without prior notice to the Defendant;. 

petition the ~·for an order requiring Defendant·to pay an additional civil penalty.. In 

. . ·connection with the Commission's motion for civil penalties, and at any hcsarin1 held on such a 

motion: (a) Defendant Will be preCtuded from arguing that he did not viol8te the federal 

securities Jaws as alleged in the Complamt; (b) Defendant may not challenge the validity of the 

Judpient, this Consent, or any related Undertakings; (c) the~ of the cOmp• solely 

for~ purposes of'~ motion, sb8n be accepted as and deemed 1rue by the Court; and (d) the 

. 2 
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Cour_t may deterinine the issues raised in the motion on the basis of atlidavits, declarations, 

excerpts of sworn deposi~ or investigative testimony, and documentary evidence without 

regard to the standards for summary judgment contained. in Rule S6(c) of the Federil Rules of 

Civil Procedme. Under these circumstances, the parties may take discovery, including discovery . 

·-
S. Defendant waives die entry of findinp of fact and conclusiom of law pursuant to 

Rule 52 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedme. 

6. Defendant waives the right, if any, to a jury 1l;ia1 and to appeat from the entry of. 

the Final Judgment. 

7. Defendant ente.rs into this Consent voluntarily and 1epieseats that no tbreafs, 

o1fers, promises, or inducementa of any kind haw been made by the Commission or any e _, II 

member, ofticer, employee, apnt, or representative of the Commission to induce Defendant to 

8. Defendant 111W 1hat this Consent shall be incorporatecl into the Final Jtufp1ent 

with the same fome and effect u if fully set forth therein. 

9. · Defendant will not oppose the enforcement of the Final Judgment on the ground, 
, .. 

if any exists, that it fails to comply with Rule 6S(d) of the Federal Rules of CiW Procedure. and 

hereby waiws any objection based thereon. .. 

1 O. Defendant waives service of the F'mal Judgment and agfees that entry of the Pinal 

Judgment by the Court and fillna with the Clerk: of the Court wiD comf:itute notice to Defendant . 

of its terms and conditions. Defendant further aarees to provide counsel for the Comminion, 

within thirty days after the Final Judpent is tiled with the Clerk of the Court, with an aftidavit 

or declaration stating that Defendant has received and read a copy of the Fmal Judgment. 

3 
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' . 
11. Consistent with 17 C.P .R. § 202.S(f), tbis. ConsCnt resQ.lves only the claims 

asserted agiun&t Defendnt in this. civil ~Ing ~ adato~ that no promise or 
. . : . . ; ... 

•• • ,. > • .. ... 

. ·~on has been made by the Commission or any .member, ofiicer, Cmployee, agent, 0r 

~ve of tlle·CommissiO.n with regmd to any criminal lilbility that may have arisen or 
, ..... 

. . 
· may arise ftOm the facts underlyina this aCtion or immuDity from any~ criniinal liability. 

Defendant waives any.claim ofDouble·Jeopardy ~upon the ~ent.ofthis ~ng. 

including the imposition of miy xeinedy or civil penalty berehi. Defenctant ~ 8cbowf~. 

that die Court's entry of a permanent ~n may have colllteial ~~under federal 
' .. ~ . 

or state law and the rules and iegulatiOns of self-regulatory orpniDtions, licensina boards. and 

other regulatory~ Such collateral consequences ~ but are·n~ limited to, a 

statutoij-with·respect to~ or participation in, 0r _.ad.on wi1h a · 
··- . .. . ·~ . . . .. . . ·. . . . .... - . 

mem~ot; a.Self~.~ ~ sbdutm)'.~llas CODJOqUeDCeldwt 

·are se.r)arate ·&om any ~on imposed in in administDative pmcWcHna . .In addition, in any . 
. : . • ~. '"~·"' '"":'''""~"·,~ .. ;.: ·• .; . ·"·: .,·~·.·"'\"•':'':,;:,.;:..·.~,; • .,.,;, ... :·· ... : .. , ·!'·· '""·' ........... ;., .... ~ .. , .. ,<', ....... ~ ......... ., .... , .. :)'"'·: ,, . ; .. ,, ":'""''' ,: ,,·,, .. 

disciplbiary pr0crofin1beforethoCommissionbased0n the.emry of the injunction in this 
~- ' .. 

action. Defendant 1Dldentands that he shall not be permitted to comest the factual allegations of 
. . . .. . 

the cOmplaint in this actiOn. .. 
12. · Defendant understands and agrees to comply with the~ of 17 c.F.R. 

•. 

§ 202.S(e), which provides in part 1hat it is fhe· Commission's policy "not to permit a defmdmit . 

or respondent to consent to a judgment 0r order that imPoses a sanction wbUe denying the 
f ~ • • • 

·alleged~ in the complaint or Older for proceedinp." and "a retbsal to admit the allegations is 

equivalent to a denial, unless the defendant or mpondent stama that he neither admits nor denies 

the allegatiom.'' ~ part of Defendant's agreeinellt to comj>ly witl;l the terms of Section 202.S(e), 

· Defendant: (i) wm ·not~'·~ ~on or make or permit to bo IP8de any public statement 

4 
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' . 
denyin& dhecdy or ~y. ~allegation in the complaint or~ the~ that the 

~is withoqt·factuat ·basis; (h)willnot mate ~pciamit _:,·be made anypublic·'statemem 
' . . .. ~ . . : . .. . . . . _.: ; 

' 
to the etfect that DefeDdaat does not admit the alleptions of the qomplaint. or.that this ·Consent. 

· ~no admission of the an9d~ without aliO stadDg that~ does not deny the. 
" ' ..... . "... .;, 

thi8 actiontO the~ that the, clCnY any allegation in the Com,tamt; am (iv)·~ solely 
• • ' -11' • 

for pmp1&ei ·of exceptions to discharge set forth in Section 523 of-the Bankruptcy Code, 11 . 

. u~s.~. §523, that the anepdom in die complaint a true, and~. that mi, debt ror . 
. disgorgement, prejudgment interest, civil penalty or other amoums d1_le by Defimdant under~ \ : 

.{ ... · 

Fin:81 Juctlmeni or q. other judgmellt, order, consent order, decree or:~~ .. 

· ~ ia cmmedioD ~~:~is a debt ibrtl)e vio1atlOa ~~of tho iildeial 

secmitics Jawa or any regulation, or Order issUed ~ suCh laws, u set forth in Section · 

S23CaX19)oftbo Bankruptcy Code, 11 u.s.C. §523(aj(t9). IfDcfendaat breaches this 
..•.... ~ •.. ..,,:..,. ~-"?·· l' .•. ~., .... ,. ... , •. ;.,; ....... 1 .............. '·-·:· .. ,. ..... ,,........ ..• ..... ,. ~ : ' '. , . .,, .. , . . ·-~·········'·" •'' '''." ,: . ·~ ........ ··. :·~.· .. ,..,.... .. ~ " ; 

agreem«;nt, the Commission maj petition the~ to vacate 1he Final J1utgmeut and JeStore this · . 
. ,. . ' _., . 

. . 

· obligations; or (ti) right to take lel:'1 or factual positions in litigation or other legal proceedinp · 

· in which. the Commission is not a party. 

13. Defendant 'hereby waives~ rights under the~ Access to Justice Act, the 

Small B•'Siness Regulatory EnforcementFairneas.Act of 1996, or any other provision of law to 
. . 

seek ftOm. the United States. 0r any agency, ~any ofli~ of the United States acting~ his or · 

her official capacity, directly or indirectly,~ of attomey•i fees or other~ 

. eXpenses. or costs eX.,ended by Defen,dant to defend apinst this action. For theaO pmposes,. 

s 

Case 3:15-cv-07118-AET-LHG   Document 9   Filed 10/01/15   Page 5 of 22 PageID: 147

BATES NO. EIB 000897 
02/27/2017



·. 
•. Case 3:15-cv-07118-AET-LHG Do~ument 7 Filed 09/28115 Page s·of 14 PagelD: 109 

.>"' • 

. . . 
: , " ' . ~,'. . . . 

. Defendant agrees that Defendant is not the prevailing' party in this action smce tho parties have 
{ ' ' > , ... • • • .. 

;~·aoQ4-~\ 
14. ln-~oowithtbis d~ and anyielatecl~ill or~ 

,. . . . . .. . ' ·''· . . . . . ·. . . ~ 

procee<ting or inWitigadon Coininenceci by the Commission or to which1be Comniission is a 
. . ,· . . . .. . .- . 

party, Defendant (i) ....... tolppear and· be interviewed by Cotnrft(ssi~strdf at .. times and . 

places_• the statr~ Qpo~reas0nal)le notice;.(h)will~ ~ by.~or ~ile 
' . . ,. 

tnmsmission.of D01ices or subpoenas issued by tho Commission.for~- or testimony at 

sta&;· (lh) appoints Defendant's undersip.ed attomey • agent to receive selvice of such notices 
. ,. . ' 

and subpoenas; (IV) with respect to such'. notices ~subpoenas, waives tho territorial limits OD 
. ~ , . 

seMce contafu.ed in Rule 4S.Of the Federal ~-of Civil~ and any applicable~ 
, ·>. • ,. 

. rules. pmvideclthattbepmiy·~ the ~reimburses~· uavel,. lodgtn& and 
. . 

suhsislmce mr.pemes at_,~ U.S. GoVflDlrieDt per dieauatm; and (v) comrmta to 
' '~ ,.,,...., ,' :"'<" "''' ,;"".._'"'f':'• '·• ,);, .... '' ... (,>o • r"""•) •' r•' "'\';,,. 

0
•0 ·,,;, • : •,;,.~.•••· o.( .... , 0 ••<• ••. ;Jll.. '' ( •• ~~' ' ''' "'' ":-'"''' ')Ito.'''./"·'• • • ' •• '•'•· j,'·'' • '<• • '•• •·'••<• '- • • •• • ,,. '< <'°H H• ; , » , ... , 0 , ,., , <f o( •• 

personal jmisdiction over·~ant in any u~ States Diitrict Court for purposes°" 
enfOJdng aity such subpoena. . 

· · ts. Defendant ap. that the Commission inay paent the Final Jud&inem to the 

· Comt for sipaiure and entry without fbrther notice.; 

: 

6 
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. : " 

: : : :::J~µg)of;e.of~~orcing;.th~tl,11h~l-of the Finaliudgme11t.\ · 
.... · - .h. ... :. .. . ,,· ·.• . . ·.' ,, . · .. •··· 
.:· ~ . -: .. 

Approved as to form: 
. . . 

· .. '. H:au~?t41/l()t~ 
. J·{~A·M~!li~ •. ~, --·• ~. f/ .. 

· Moscowitz & MoscowitZ, P.A 
· Sabadell Financial Center. · 
· lll lBrickell Ave.,. Suite 2050 
Miami, FL 33131 

7 

..... 

'· 

--··.· ....... · .. ·.· .. 
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UNITEO: S'fA'fBS DISTIUCT COURT 
. DISTIUCT OP·mw JER.sBY •.. 

'• - .. 

SBCURITJES AND EXCHANGE COMMISS~ON. · 

Plain~. 
C.ANo._-_ 

v. 

DONALD R. TBSCHER et al., 

Defendants. 

·,. .- . 

FINAL JUDGMENT AS TO DEFENDANT DONALD R. TESCBER ... · 
-f • • • , • ,- : • .. . . • . . : ..• ,·. 

. . . . .. . 

Donald R. Tescher ("Defendanf') havilig-enterecl a general appearance;_consented to the Court's 

juriSdiction over Defendant and the subjectmatter of this action; consented to: entry ·of this Fir)al 
.. . . l ·.. .. . . . .. . ' ·• . . ·. . . . . · . 

.,, .. ·,· ··- . -...... ,.;<··' ~-:. •: -·~--·····~ . . . ' .• -· .. .•.. :~ .,. .•.. ··:. ~ ';~. , .• 

Judgment without admitting or denying the allegations of the Complaint (except as to 

jurisdiction and except :as otherwise provided herein in paragraph VI); waived findings of fa.et 

and· conclusions of law; and waived any right to appeal from this Final JU:dgment: 

I. 
. . .. . 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant and. 

Defendant's agents, servants,. employees, attomeys, and all persons_ in active concert or 

· participation with them who receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service·or 

otherwi$C are permanently restrained and enjoined n:Qm violating, directly or indirectly, Section 

l~) of the Secmities Bxchange Actof 1934 (the "Exchange Actj [lS 11.s.c. § 78j(b)] and 

Rule lOb-S promulg~ thereun~er (17 c~F.R. § 240.tOb-5], by using any means or :' 
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··.;·. 

secUrlties exe~e, in·Connection witttthe Pme~ ot sale of an)' securiti: . : 
. . ..... , ... - . , .·. :;· •, ..... ··:······ ·- ·· .. · .. • . ········-· 

(a) · ·~~Of anydevie8,~~artificeto~ 
.. 

. ·. (b) · to ~ake any untrue stat~ebt orlilllaterial,factot tO oJllit u> std, atnatoriaJ &ct· .. 
,.i 

· .···.~.inontcr::io·111a¥~:~~-rnade,:ut:theii&htotim,e~ees .. · 
.·"· ··:';' .. 

. . : 

( e) . to engage i~ any act. practice, O?'cOUl'Se of business which optTaies or woul~ 

operate as a frawfor deeeit upon any penon. 
\. 

: IL 

... rr1sHEREB:vFOR•:oRDEREP. AJ>JUPGBD. AND vECREaPfhall>ofmidmt. 
: . ' ~- . ' . . . . . ' .. . ... · .·· . . . . . . . . . . . . : . . . ... . . '. . : . . . . . . . . . . . . . : . . . . . . . . 

. and Defendant's agents;~, empl~yee'S, attOmeys, and allpersons in active conCert or' . . . . . 

. participation with them who i=eive a~tual'~tiee of.this F~ Judgment by penomd service or 

.'·.·: .. <>f#enYiSO&re.l>eiiDanettu1~·•~<feiij0ine<t.&om.ViotltiD1'8Ceti08·14(e)or~··&cb8D&e· 

.Act [JSU.S.C. § 78ii{e)] SndRuleJ4e·l[l7 C.F.R. § 240.14e-3]pomulgated thereunder, in 

Connection with any tender offer or request~ invitation. for tenders, from enpging in any 

fraudulent, deceptive, or.~pulative act .or practice, by: 

(a) purchasing or selling or causing to be purchased or sold the securities 
.. . . . . ... .. . . .. 

sought or to be sought in such tender offer, securities convertible into or, 

exchangeable for any
1 

such 'securitie& or any option or right to obtain or 

dispose of any of the foregoing securities while in possessiOn of material . . . . . . . . ·. 

infonnation relating to such tender offer.that l)efendant knows or has. , 
; : . . .,. .. · . . . 

-~ ~ '" 

reason to know is nonpublic and kno\vs or has reason to know has been 

2 
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. . . ,.· . . . ... . . .. ·:-. ·. .. .. 
• • •h • • • • • • • • • • • 

. . . . . . . . 

. ·.·.··· ... ac:ct~~~or.~)'fniinthe.~~t¥~ofthcl ··. ·• 
. . ., . . : . : ·:·: .. < .: < :. ::~ -:: ':. . ; ·· .. -~:: . 

securities soiigh,t or to bi soiig\U by such tender offer; or any officer, 

. :._:. difector,parlnef J~P.t~yee ~r ()therpet10~ lcimll till.~haltoithe o~g­
. per&on or such i~, unles$·within a re&SOn8bteJil11e pri0r to any such-: 

. . . . ': . . . . ., 

. ,·. ' . . . , 

·.· purchase or sale stidt uuomMltion and m source are publicly,disclosed by 

press release or otherwise; or · 

(b) communicating material, nonpublic information relating to a tender offer, 
. . . 

. -· . which Defendant knows C>r has reason to know is nonpublic and knoWl or 
. ~-

. · -has reason to know has been acquired directly or indirectly ftom the 
' , . , . . . ' . .. . : . . . . . ... ~ . . : . . . ' . : . : . . . : . . : . . . . . . . . . . :. . . 

· • o~ person; ,tJ,te i~ e>(the ~ti"5 Sought oflo ~ ~p&bt,by stlch:. · · 
... '~der otiet; or -~otli~~ ~' ~t cmlpfoy~'.ad~;:or ot1tei< .. · . 

person acting on behalf of the offering person of such issuer, to any person 

under circumstances in wllich it is reasonably foreseeable that such _ 
• • • .... ,. • • : • • • • • • • • • •• , • • • •• • • • ., ,, '. ._.,..' • ·'" •• ·~· • ., :' ••• ,. - • ., • • • • ••• : ' ":" ~; ,· ••• ; • .:. •• • • •• • • ". ~ •••• "'· y •• ,;: ; •• ' .... : ':' ·-·· •••••• ·--:: •• ~ ••• "• ' 

. . . . ' 

. _ commµnication, is.likely to result in the puichase_ m_Sale of ~Curities. in the 
. . . . 

ma.triter desCribed in subparagraph (a) above; excc:pi that thiS paragtaph 

shall not apply .to a communication made in good faith. 

(i) to the officers, directors, ~ or employees of the 

offering person, to its advisors or to other persons, involved 

in the planning. financing, preparation or execution of such 

tender offer; 

(ii) to the issuer whose securities are sought or to be sought by 

such tender offer, to its officers, directors, partners, 

employees or.advi8ors or to.other persons· involved in the 

3' 
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- - . . ' . . . 

P~& fitutri<:in&· ~~fiPJtQf el(.~Qtt. qf ttle .. 
. •. - .. ' . . ·.··· ' .. 

. acti~ti~ of the issllet with res~'tO .s~li.tmder otrer, or 

(iii) ·. to>any J)er$>n ~uant t0 a ~~,~tany statUte or 
~~ or.te~ation }>tODlulgatai th•dOT.. · 
: ·' _: 

. :m .. 

IT IS FUR1HER ORDERED, ADJUOOEJ?, AND_DECREED tblltl>efendantis liable· 

fo. r disgorgemeot of $9,937~ representing profits g~ed as a result of the eondiici an.· eged in the , . . . . . .. . -- ' 

. - . .. ' . 

CompJaUrt. ~·with pn!judgmellt ~thereon in the amount of $690, and a ci\rll penattf · 
. . . 

· -··· · • , : • · inJhe amount'.of$9,937 pu?suantto S~~; 2tAoftlle Exclumge Act(lS:U.S~C. § 18u-11~ . 
. . . .. _ ·.,:' ... ~;· .· .. - .-~-~- .::-. -~ ... . .. ;:> .: .. ·.. _:\,··::;.:_ ... · . .· ,•:.. .· ·_ .· .. ; .::->.·· ,··.· .. · ... 

Defefid1Ifi·Sli~1~:Sfy,;t11is:(,bli~~·WP:.i~$20,s64•iO·~··~~uritiel:llJld·~·~···•.•-·: -.. 

. . .. . . . . . . .. . . . . . 

. DefendaDt 111ay ~ paymentelectronically to the Commission, ~ch Will provide 

•...• detiil~ACH·~~~WiJi, ~~iJPi>iiieQ• 1,aYiDe1itm:aY;IJiobe·li18de~ 
ftoJJ1 a bank accou11fyia Pay.go'V thrOUjh ~SBC Website it 

- . -

htg>://ww\v.Sec~gov/a]>Qut/ofti~oftn.htm. Defendant'rltay also pay by certified check, bank 

cashier'~ cheek, or United States postal money onJer payable to the Securities and Exchange 

Commi~fon, which shall be delivered or mailed to 
. . ' 

Enterprise Services Center 
Accounts Receivable Branch 
6500 South MacArthur Boulevard 
Oklahoma City, OK.73169' · .. • 

- ' 

and shall ~ ~panled by a letter identifyirig tbO case title, civil action n~, Ind_ Dant~ of 
. . . .. . ' . . . . . ' . . . . . . . . . . . . . ~ 

'purswmt t0this Final Judgment. _· 

4 
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Defendant shall simultaneously transmit photocopies of evidence o~payment and case 
. . 

identifying inf~on to the Commission's counselin tbis action. By making this payment, .. , 
~ . . . ,_ . . : . . 

Defendant relinquishes ·all legal and equitable right, title, and.interest in such (Unds and. no part 
. ,· . . . .. . ·. . 

.. of the fbnds sba~tlbe ~to oer~t.. The ~()~On S~ send the ~ds paid puisuant . ... 
t0 this Final JudgrA~t to_ the United SU\teS Tteasuri .... 

. The con1nliSsion may enforce the. Co~·sj~ganent for disgorgement and prejudgment 

interest by moving for civil contempt (and/or through o~ collection procedures miihorized by 

law) at any time * 14 days following entry of this Pinal Judgment. Defendant smill pay post .· 

judgment interest on. any delinquent amounts pursuant to 21 U.S.C. § 1961 •.. · 

IV. 

IT IS HEREBY FURUIER .ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DEcR.EED that based on 

Defendant's cooperatl~ in a Commission investigation and/or related enforcement ·action,. the 

·co\lrt"is nOi"ol'deniil~ttOpay.a ciVii PeDlliY iD ex~sl""of$~,937~; Irat any"tmie· . 

following the·entry of tho~ Final Judgment me Commission obtains ~onnation indicating that . 
• 0 

Defendant knowingly provided materially false or misleading information or materials to the 

Commission or in a related proceeding, the <;ommission may, at its sole discretion ~ without 

prior notice to the Defendant, petition the Court for an order requiring Defendant to pay an 

additional civil penalty: In connection with any such petition and at any h~g held on sUch a 
~ • ' '<. 

·motion: (a) Defendant will be precluded ftom arguing that he did not violate the federal 

securitiei laws ~ alleged m the Complaint;. (b) ~fendant may not challenge the validity of the 

JUdgment, this Consent, or any. ~lated Undertakings; (c) the allegations of~ Complaint, solely 

for the purposes of such motion, shall be accepted as and deemed true by the Court; and (d) the 

5 
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CQurt may det~ the issues raised in the motion on the buis of affidaVits, declaratiollS, 

excerpts of SWOm deposition or investigative testimony,-~ documentary .evidence without 
'• A ' ', • )' '•' ' :, • 

. . . . . 

regard to the standards for summary judament containCd in Rulo ?6Cc) of the Federal Rules o~ · 
. . . . . . . 

Civil Pr®edure. Under.these-circumstances, tile parties ~Y t.ako diseovery, hicluding discovery . 

from 1ppro1>riate non-parties. · 
'. 

v. 
IT IS FURTIIER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that the Consent is 

. . . 

incorporated herein with the same force and effect as if fully set forth herein. and that Defendant 

shall comply;with all of the undertakinp and agreements set foi:th therein. 

VI. 

IT IS F{ffl.TIIER ORDER.ED, ADJUDGEµ, AND DECREED that, solely for purpoSes of 

.. ex~ns to diSchatge set forth ilt Section S~ of.the Bankruptcy Code_ ll U.S.C._._ §523, the ... 

allegations in the Complaint are tnie and admitted by Defendant, and further, any debt for 

diSgorgement, prej~gmen~ interest, oiVn penalty or other amowits due by ~endant under this 

F"mal Judgment or any other judgment,· order, consent order, decree or settlement agreement 

entered in connection with. this proceeding, is adebt for the violation by Def~ of the federal 
. . j . 

securities laws or any regulation or order issued lDlder such laws, ~ set forth in Section 

S23(aX19) of the Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. § S23(a)(19). 

VIL 

IT IS FURTHER. ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that this Court shall retain 

jurisdiction of this matter for the purpo&es of enforcing the tenns of this Final Judgment. 

6 

\. 

\ 
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' ' vm. 
. There being no just reason for delay, pursuant to Rule 54(b) of the Federal .Rules of C~vil .. 

. . 
~rocedure, the Clerk is ordetcd to enter this Final Judgment forthwith and without fmther n0tice. 

· ....... ~···· Datt.d;&d-1 . 2J) /h . . 

. ' . 

7· 

Case 3:15-cv-07118-AET-LHG   Document 9   Filed 10/01/15   Page 14 of 22 PageID: 156

BATES NO. EIB 000906 
02/27/2017



Case 3:15~cv-07118-AET-LHG Document7~1 ·Filed 09/28/15 Page 1 of7PagelD:118 

UNITED; S1'ATES DISTJUCT C()URT 
.. DI~TIUC'f OF·~WJEIJ.s'.BY ·.· 

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISS~ON, . · 

Plain~. . . . 

C.A. No. • --v. 

DONALD R. TESCHER et al., 

.Defendants • 

•.. FINAL.~ooMENT.~ TOD~.-\N'f DoNALD a. TESCBEa •.. 
The $~ties·and Exchange C<!mmission having filed· a Complaint Ind Defendani: : .. 

"• 

Donald It Tescher ("Defendanf') Jtavhia entered·~ gener8l appearan~; consented to the Court's. 
" . . . .. . : . . . . . . .. · ·.· . ··' . . .· . . 

jurisdiction over Defendant and the subject matter of tms action; consentecUo entry of this Final. 
. ··." . . . . ' . . . . . .. " 

Judgment withoUt. admitting' or denying the a11egations of die comJ;iliht (ucept as t0 .. 

jurisdiction and except as otherwise provided hetein in paragraphVI); waived findings of fact 

and· conclusions of law; Ind waived any right to appCal fiom this Final Jll;dgment: 

I. 

IT IS ·HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREEf? that Defendant anf! 

Defendant's agents, servants,. employees, attorneys. and all persons.in active concert or 

· participation with them who receive ~tual notice of'this Final Judgment by personal service or 
. , 

otherwise are pennanently restrained and.enjoined ~m violating,.directly orindllectly,.Section 
. . . '. . . . 

l~) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Actj [1511.s.c. § 78j(b)] and. 

Rule lOb-5 promul~ thereunder (17 C.F .R. § 240.1 Ob-5], by using any means or• .. 
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. . . , . 

. instrunlentaJityof i1:'~ CO~~ ()I'. of the.~ or of any facility.of an)'. national·• 
''('. 

securities exehaltge, fu.connectfoJ1 with thei)urChase or Sale of an)' security~'· 
•' ·· .. ·, ::.· ;,; : .· - . - ... _._. . .· ... •.·- .. ·. ·- . : 

·.·. . ,· .. · :. " . . ,' .. . . . .. 

, (b) , , to tnab any un1rUe $tiltenlent of ll'Materi.i fact or to oJDittO state .fl material fact 

~saey in onter~ Uia1ce:thC sta~ts 1l'lade, hi theli&ht of thl' (:l~- .· , 

Under which they were·~· not muleading; or 

( c) . to engage irt any ~ practice, or·caurse of business which opemles or would 
, , 

, , 

operate as a fraud 'or deceit upon ally person. 

. . -. ' 

IL . 

· ·ITIS:ilmmBYFUR'tHER ORDERED, AJ;lJUDOED, AND DECREED that t>efeiidant .. ·. 
•.-.· . ,. . . ·.· .. ·. ·,. . .· ·.. . :· . . : ...... ·.·.. . . . 

·and Defendant's agents, ~ employees, attorneys, and all persons in activ~ concert.or 

participation with them whQ receive actualnotl~ of_this Final Judgment by penonat service or 
. ' . . ! ··: . . . . 

' . . . . 

.·····•.·<>~sc;an,·~·~·m,if etiJofuea·ifamvit>tltiiia··s~<>r.·I4<e>' orthe.:&chlnae . 
. ,' . . ' 

Act [IS U$.C. § 78ii(e)] and.Rulel4e·3· (17 C.F.R. § 240.14e-3]promulgated thereunder, in 

oonnection with any tender offer or request o~ invitation' for tenders, .from engaging in.any 

fraudulent, deceptive, oun~pulative act _or practice, by: 

(a) purchasing or selliDg or causing to be purchased or sold the securities 
> • • • ... ... • .. • 

sought or to be sought in such tendet offer, securities convertible into or. 

exchangeable for any 'such ,securitiel or any opuon or rigb.ho obtain or 

~of any. of the foregoing securities while·~ possessian of material 
, , , 

information l'f!udina. to such.tender offer·~ Pefendant .knows or has. ·. . 
:··· 

... ... .... 

reason to know is nonpublic and mows or h.as reason to know bas beell 

2 

\ . 
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: . . . . . . . . . . . . . : . : ·. ~ : . : . . . . . . : : ' . . . ... : : . . . . . . . . . : . ; . 

······~~~t~·~fn>nl·fhcl~~~tb,e~Of~··.· .. · 
. . . .::.::>· : ... -..:._.:::.;::·: ,,·. ,: ... ·.·. :,-:' ; : ;-:· .. ~··<. :.·(' .·:; 

seCurities So~.Ol'.fO 1*' sought by such~.~~"OI' any officet, 

····.··.·,···i;: ditedor, ~~:ern~1~;~.<>l"·Other:~~:,lo~*·•·c>tt,~fudi.ortbe•<>treiini 
.. person or sucll i~uer, tlritea.within a re&,on8b1e time prior to any such 

. . ... ' . . . . . . 
. . . . . ·. .... ': . . . ·... ' . . . .. . 

.· purcMse or sale stich iJllonilation and lts source are pubUCJydisclosed by. 

press release or otherwliJe; or 
' ' ' 

(b) communicating material, nonpublic information. relating to a tender offer, 

which Defendant knows or has reason to know is.nonpublic .nd tcnows·or · 

'. ' has, reason to know has been acquired directly or indirectly·fi:om the 
' . ' . 

·.·. •, . . . . . . ,. . : ' . .· '' .· ... ,· ·. .' ,· .. 

· · · oflering pers<>ii; the issUer of the .securities Sought ot to J,)e sou&lttby such · · 
: .- : . : . ·. . . ' .. . ' .. . . . .' .. :'. ·, ..... •. ;: : .· ... : .. . " , . · .. : :.'· .. :_. . . . ; ... . . . : ,,' . :, .· ·• . :. , __ .. : . ", . . · .. ·. . . . . . ·~. ' 

·· ~daotreti~~~~~.~.~.etnPtill'el.~~~orhther ·. 
person acting on behalf of the offering person of such issuer, to any person 

· ·under circumstances in which it is reuonably foreseeable that such 
,. :" ·., ... , •, . . ., ',•,·,. ..·.· . ' . · ...... ,... "=-:-<·· .,, ... ~... :·· ·' : · .. , .... ·:······ .. : ···':' '·'"'. ·"'•· · .. •·' . "••"•.' .:·;··· ;'· "'·"··' ''• •''• .... ···.'·" :. 

' ' ' 

commllbicatio~.is likely to• result in the purchase, or.s&le o(~Curities in the 
' ' • I 

~er <Iesaibed in subparagr. . · aph (a) above; except that this paragtaph· 
' , ' 

shall not apply to a communication made in gQOd faith . 

(i) to the officers, directors, ~ or employees of the 

offering person, to its advisors or to other persons, involved 

in the planning,. financing, preparation or execution of such 

tender offer; 

(ii) to the issuer whose securities are sought or to be sought by 

such tender offer, to its ofticen, directors, partners, 

employees or advisors or to. other persons involved in the 
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